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2017 2016 2015
1,000 1,000 1,000
2,392,559 2,228,050 2,400,898
892,289 547,406 337,615
685,555 384,547 193,060
601,000 266,349 75,186
84,555 118,198 117,875
- - (€H)
672,708 373,538 238,351
588,153 255,340 120,477
84,555 118,198 117,875
- - €H)
5.00 2.22 0.62
7,441,560 9,530,263 9,625,758
9,606,826 11,446,308 12,026,843
) 77.5 83.3 80,0
1,255,876 1,164,832 1,261,927
456,867 (270,126) 455,490
(2,774,728) (980, 151) (457,956)
3,833,904 4,963,436 5,002,063
2017 2016 2015
1,000 1,000 1,000
728,772 464,344 330,072
643,432 527,831 447,190
627,201 511,574 432,556
542,646 393,376 314,681
84,555 118,198 117,875
627,223 511,574 432,556
542,668 393,376 314,681
84,555 118,198 117,875
4,711,999 6,846,187 6,803,640
5,376,827 7,102,541 7,043,162
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2012 10 9,114,030 12,208,995,847 -| 5,728,537,831
PSS
2012 19 3,749,000| 12,212,744,847 732,890| 5,729,270,721|ES0S
11 30
2012 12 12 10,000| 12,212,754,847 -| 5,729,270,721 PSS
2012 12 14 320,000 12,213,074,847 61,681 5,729,332,402|ES0S
2013
21
2013 25 1,775,000| 12,214,849,847 -| 5,729,332,402Pss
2013 31 1,844,000| 12,216,693,847 359,282| 5,729,601,684ESOS
10
2013 24 7,065,000 12,223,758,847 -| 5,729,691,684 PSS
2013 25 5,982,000 12,229,740,847 1,184,718 5,730,876,402 |ESOS
2014
16
2014 24 7,745,000 12,237,485,847 -| 5,730,876,402 PSS
2014 29 651,000 12,238,136,847 129,956 5,731,006,358 | ESOS
21
2014 24 5,275,000 | 12,243,411,847 -| 5,731,006,358 | PSS
2014 25 4,724,451 12,248,136,298 942,870 5,731,949,228 | ESOS
12
2014 12 10 | (46,284,000)| 12,201,852,298| (50,080,018)| 5,681,869,210
2014 12 18 4,589 12,201,856,887 948| 5,681,870,158 |ESOS
2014 12 23 2,000,000 12,203,856,887 -| 5,681,870,158 PSS
2014 12 30 | (97,277,000)| 12,106,579,887| (108,819,815)| 5,573,050,343
2015 300,631 | 12,106,880,518 62,077| 5,573,112,420|ES0S
2015 12 | (10,786,000) | 12,096,094,518|  (11,558,088)| 5,561,554,332
2015 19 362,937 12,096,457,455 76,086 5,561,630,418 |ESOS
22
2015 26 9,595,000 12,106,052,455 -| 5,561,630,418 PSS
2015 13 | (16.,659,600) | 12,089,392,855| (16,821,936)| 5,544,808,482
2015 1,367,115 12,090,759,970 291,716| 5,545,100,198 | ESOS

20
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2015 (11,989,400) | 12,078,770,570 (11,076,198) | 5,534,024,000
2015 1,168,525| 12,079,939,095 251,630 5,534,275,630|ESOS
2015 15 (10,255,200) | 12,069,683,895 (9,498,240) | 5,524,777,390
2015 22 1,804,620 12,071,488,515 389,506 5,525,166,896 | ESOS
2015 24 8,757,550 12,080,246,065 -| 5,525,166,896 | PSS
2015 29 11,780,759| 12,092,026,824 2,538,530 5,527,705,426|ESOS
10
2015 12 23 2,000,000 12,094,026,824 -| 5,527,705,426 | PSS
4
2018 28 14.52%
85.48%
) % %
1-99 598 0.82 12,317 0.00
100 - 1,000 7,705 10.64 4,793,886 0.04
1,001 - 10,000 36,689 50.66 204,608,453 1.70
10,001 - 1,000,000 27,317 37.72 1,367,605,225 11.35
1,000,001 118 0.16 10,467,974,643 86.91
72,427 100.00 12,044,994,524 100.00
5
2018 2 28
%
6,353,685,269 52.75
1,215,987,458 10.10
663,057,783 5.50
349,291,250 2.90
281,579,364 2.34
220,353,441 1.83
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183,350,790 1.52
181,388,920 1.51
154,275,147 1.28
133,430,840 1.11
9,736,400,262 80.84
2018 2 28
%
% %
GOHL 6,353,685,269 52.7496 - -
GENT - - 6,353,685,269 52.7496
142,800 0.0012 6,353,685,269 52.7496
Kien Huat
Reality Sdn Berhad
KHR
- - 6,353,828,069 52.7508
Kien Huat
International Limited
KHI
- - 6,353,828,069 52.7508
13,445,063 0.1116 6,353,828,069 52.7508
LKT
- - 6,353,828,069 52.7508
GOHL GENT GENT GOHL
KHR GENT 20% KHR GOHL
KHR KHI KHI KHR GOHL
LKT
KHI KHR
KHR GOHL
LKT LKT
LKT LKT
LKT GENT GENT GENT

LKT
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2016 12 31 a 2016 11
2016 12 0.015
b 2017 20 AGM
2017 19 0.015
2017 12 31 (2)2017 8 2
2017 9 20 0.015 (0)2018
4 17 AGM 2018 5 23
0.02
1
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2013 12 31 (2014 12 31 [2015 12 31 [2016 12 31 (2017 12 31
1.640 1.510 1.085 1.040 1.380
1.290 1.005 0.695 0.660 0.875
2017 12 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
1.36 1.41 1.36 1.17 1.21 1.33
1.27 1.29 1.20 1.08 1.07 1.16
2018
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9,750,000
10,000,000
0.4 51.4 48.1 0.1 0.0 100 0
4,750,000
5,000,000
1.0 31.6 63.4 4.0 0.0 100 750,000
250,000
500,000
100 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 125,000
®
100 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 125,000
100 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 125,000
0
250,000
100 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 0
100 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 0

51/251



D 2017
@

®

Q)

2017 12 31

2017 12 31

2018
2018 1 1

2006

52/251

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

PSS 2017

2006



10

11

12

13

14

15

€00

53/251

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

D.
Q)
SGXNet
www .gentingsingapore.com
@)
€00 CFO
(i)

SGXNet

SGXNet

54/251



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

2017 2016
484 16 465 26
1,392 990 1,345 273
1,876 1,006 1,810 299
PwC
33 A
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2017 2016 2017 2016
2,392,559 2,228,050 728,772 464,344
(1,317,709)  (1,538,552) - -
1,074,850 689,498 728,772 464,344
171,665 104,868 113,731 113,663
(161,591)  (159,660) (30,645) (30,919)
(57,928) (54,551) - _
(134,707) (32,749) (168,426) (19,257)
892,289 547,406 643,432 527,831
(35,648) (44,553) @17 -
3,385 (6,234) - .
860,026 496,619 643,055 527,831
(174,471)  (112,072) (15,854) (16,257)
685,555 384,547 627,201 511,574
(7.,413) (30,337) - -
4,321 10,395 - -
104 8,930 22 -
(9,859) 3 - -
(12,847) (11,009) 22 -
672,708 373,538 627,223 511,574
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2017 2016 2017 2016
601,000 266,349 542,646 393,376
84,555 118,198 84,555 118,198
685,555 384,547 627,201 511,574
588,153 255,340 542,668 393,376
84,555 118,198 84,555 118,198
672,708 373,538 627,223 511,574
2017 2016
8
5.00 2.22
4.99 2.21
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2017 2016 2017 2016
4 194,826,079 181,430,112 59,343,904 37,811,532
(107,301,044) (125,284,289) - -
87,525,036 56,145,822 59,343,904 37,811,532
13,978,681 8,539,401 9,261,115 9,255,578
(13,158,355) (13,001,114) (2,495,422) (2,517,734)
(4,717,077)  (4,442,088) - -
(10,969,191) (2,666,751)  (13,714,929) (1,568,098)
72,659,003 44,575,271 52,394,668 42,981,278
5 (2,902,817) (3,627,951) (30,699) -
275,641 (507,635) - -
6 70,031,917 40,439,685 52,363,969 42,981,278
7 (14,207,174)  (9,126,023) (1,290,991) (1,323,808)
55,824,744 31,313,662 51,072,977 41,657,471
(603,641) (2,470,342) - -
351,859 846,465 - -
8,469 727,170 1,791 -
(802,818) 244 - -
(1,046,131)  (896,463) 1,791 -
54,778,612 30,417,199 51,074,769 41,657,471
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2017 2016 2017 2016
48,939,430 21,688,799 44,187,664 32,032,608
6,885,314 9,624,863 6.885,314 9,624,863
55,824,744 31,313,662 51,072,977 41,657,471
47,893,299 20,792,336 44,189,455 32,032,608
6,885,314 9,624,863 6,885,314 9,624,863
54,778,612 30,417,199 51,074,769 41,657,471
2017 2016
8
4 2
4 2

109

60/251



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

2017 12 31

2017 2016 2017 2016
9 5,068,857 5,241,588 152 229
10 124,812 146,321 - -
11 54,293 50,908 - -
12 - - 1,631,145 1,982,495
13 52 26 - -
14 217,299 163,365 - -
15 3,040 3,054 417,544 462,528
5,468,353 5,605,262 2,048,841 2,445,252
16 11,786 515,269 - -
17 48,600 61,510 - -
15 126,907 197,743 459,150 885,512
18 117,276 103,088 - -
18 3,833,904 4,963,436 2,868,836 3,771,777
4,138,473 5,841,046 3,327,986 4,657,289
16 - 3,576 - -
19 462,741 349,663 402,666 238,576
20 203,137 185,590 - -
200,303 93,777 26,865 17,520
866,181 632,606 429,531 256,096
3,272,292 5,208,440 2,898,455 4,401,193
8,740,645 10,813,702 4,947,296 6,846,445

50 109
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OooooOodd
2017 2016 2017 2016
22 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705
22 (44,432) (66,730) (44,432) (66,730)
23 - 2,308,330 - 2,308,330
24 32,556 63,023 11,065 28,663
1,925,729 1,697,933 (782,339) (951,781)
7,441,558 9,530,261 4,711,999 6,846,187
2 2 - -
7,441,560 9,530,263 4,711,999 6,846,187
13 283,360 300,102 - -
20 1,012,863 978,425 235,252 -
26 476 735 45 258
19 2,386 4,177 - -
1,299,085 1,283,439 235,297 258
8,740,645 10,813,702 4,947,296 6,846,445
39 109 2018 23
50 109
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2017 12 31
2017 2016 2017 2016
9 412,757,026 426,822,511 12,377 18,647
10 10,163,441 11,914,919 - -
11 4,421,079 4,145,438 - -
12 - - 132,824,137 161,434,568
13 4,234 2,117 - -
14 17,694,658 13,302,812 - -
15 247,547 248,687 34,000,608 37,663,655
445,287,985 456,436,485 166,837,123 199,116,870
16 959,734 41,958,355 - -
17 3,957,498 5,008,759 - -
15 10,334,037 16,102,212 37,388,585 72,107,242
18 9,549,785 8,394,456 - -
18 312,194,803 404,172,593 233,609,315 307,135,801
336,995,856 475,636,376 270,997,900 379,243,043
16 - 291,194 - -
19 37,681,000 28,473,058 32,789,092 19,427,244
20 16,541,446 15,112,594 - -
16,310,673 7,636,261 2,187,617 1,426,654
70,533,119 51,513,107 34,976,709 20,853,897
266,462,738 424,123,269 236,021,191 358,389,146
711,750,722 880,559,754 402,858,313 557,506,016
50 109
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OooooOodd
2017 2016 2017 2016
22 450,121,018 450,121,018 450,121,018 450,121,018
22 (3.618,098)  (5,433,824) (3.618,098)  (5,433,824)
23 - 187,967,312 - 187,967,312
24 2,651,035 5,131,963 901,023 2,334,028
156,812,112 138,262,684 (63,705,865)  (77,503,527)
605,966,068 776,049,153 383,608,079 557,485,007
163 163 - -
605,966,231 776,049,316 383,698,079 557,485,007
13 23,074,005 24,437,306 - -
20 82,477,434 79,673,148 19,156,570 -
26 38,761 59,851 3,664 21,009
19 194,292 340,133 - -
105,784,492 104,510,438 19,160,235 21,009
711,750,722 880,559,754 402,858,313 557,506,016
39 109 2018 23
50 109
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2017 12 31
2017
5,527,705 (66,730) 28,663 17,349 17,011 1,697,933 2,308,330 9,530,261 2 9,530,263
- - - - - 601,000 84,555 685,555 - 685,555
- - - (3,092) (9,755) - - (12,847) - (12,847)
- 22,298 (28,385) - - 6,087 - - - -
- - 10,765 - - - - 10,765 - 10,765
- - - - - (360,751) - (360, 751) - (360,751)
- - - - - - (117,875) (117,875) - (117,875)
- - - - - (24,990)  (2,275,010)  (2,300,000) - (2.300,000)
- i} - - - 6,450 - 6,450 - 6,450
- 22,298 (17,620) - - (373,204)  (2,392,885)  (2,761,411) - (2,761,411)
5,527,705 (44,432) 11,043 14,257 7,256 1,925,729 - 7,441,558 2 7,441,560
50 109
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OoOoooooo

2016
5,527,705 (78,129) 32,423 37,291 8,078 1,790,052 2,308,330 9,625,750 8 9,625,758
- - - - - 266,349 118,198 384,547 - 384,547
- - - (19,942) 8,933 - - (11,009) - (11,009)
- 11,399 (14,557) - - 3,158 - - - -
- - 10,797 - - - - 10,797 - 10,797
- - - - - (360,370) - (360,370) - (360,370)
- - - - - - (118,198) (118,198) - (118,198)
- - - - - (1,256) - (1,256) - (1,256)
- - - - - - - - ®) ®
- - - - - - - - 2 2
- 11,399 (3,760) - - (358,468) (118,198) (469,027) (6) (469,033)
5,527,705 (66,730) 28,663 17,349 17,011 1,697,933 2,308,330 9,530,261 2 9,530,263
50 109
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Oooooooo
2017
5,527,705 (66,730) 28,663 - (951,781) 2,308,330 6,846,187
- - - - 542,646 84,555 627,201
- - - 22 - - 22
- 22,298 (28,385) - 6,087 - -
- - 10,765 - - - 10,765
- - - - (360,751) - (360, 751)
- - - - - (117,875) (117,875)
- - - - (24,990) (2,275,010) (2,300,000)
- - - - 6,450 - 6,450
- 22,298 (17,620) - (373,204) (2,392,885) (2,761,411)
5,527,705 (44,432) 11,043 22 (782,339) - 4,711,999
50 109
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2016
5,527,705 (78,129) 32,423 (986, 689) 2,308,330 6,803,640
- - - 393,376 118,198 511,574
- 11,399 (14,557) 3,158 - -
- - 10,797 - - 10,797
- - - (360,370) - (360,370)
- - - - (118,198) (118,198)
- - - (1,256) - (1,256)
- 11,399 (3,760) (358,468) (118,198) (469,027)
5,527,705 (66,730) 28,663 (951,781) 2,308,330 6,846,187
50 109

68/251



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)

oDooDoo
2017 12 31
2017
450,121,018  (5,433,824) 2,334,028 1,412,729 1,385,206 138,262,684 187,967,312 776,049,153 163 776,049,316
- - - - - 48,939,430 6,885,314 55,824,744 - 55,824,744
- - - (251,782)  (794,350) - - (1,046,131) - (1,046,131)
- 1,815,726 (2,311,391) - - 495,664 - - - -
- - 876,594 - - - - 876,594 - 876,594
- - - - - (29,375,954) - (29,375,954) - (29,375,954)
- - - - - - (9,598,561)  (9,598,561) - (9,598,561)
- - - - - (2,034,936) (185,254,064) (187,289,000) - (187,289,000)
- - - - - 525,224 - 525,224 - 525,224
- 1,815,726 (1,434,797) - - (30,390,002) (194,852,626) (224,861,698) - (224,861,698)
450,121,018  (3,618,098) 899,231 1,160,948 590,856 156,812,112 - 605,966,068 163 605,966,231
50 109
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2016
450,121,018  (6,362,044) 2,640,205 3,036,606 657,792 145,763,934 187,967,312 783,824,823 651 783,825,474
- - - - - 21,688,799 9,624,863 31,313,662 - 31,313,662
- - - (1,623,877) 727,414 - - (896,463) - (896,463)
- 928,221 (1,185,377) - - 257,156 - - - -
- - 879,200 - - - - 879,200 - 879,200
- - - - - (29,344,929) - (29,344,929) - (29,344,929)
- - - - - - (9,624,863)  (9,624,863) - (9,624,863)
- - - - - (102,276) - (102,276) - (102,276)
- - - - - - - - (651) (651)
- - - - - - - - 163 163
- 928,221 (306,177) - - (29,190,049) (9,624,863)  (38,192,869) (489)  (38,193,357)
450,121,018  (5,433,824) 2,334,028 1,412,729 1,385,206 138,262,684 187,967,312 776,049,153 163 776,049,316
50 109
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Ooooood
2017
450,121,018 (5,433,824) 2,334,028 - (77,503,527) 187,967,312 557,485,007
- - - - 44,187,664 6,885,314 51,072,977
- - - 1,791 - - 1,791
- 1,815,726 (2,311,391) - 495,664 - -
- - 876,594 - - - 876,594
- - - - (29,375,954) - (29,375,954)
- - - - - (9,598,561) (9,598, 561)
- - - - (2,034,936) (185,254,064)  (187,289,000)
- - - - 525,224 - 525,224
- 1,815,726 (1,434,797) - (30,390,002) (194,852,626) (224,861,698)
450,121,018 (3,618,098) 899,231 1,791 (63,705,865) - 383,698,079
50 109
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OoOoooooo

2016
450,121,018 (6,362,044) 2,640,205 (80, 346,085) 187,967,312 554,020,405
- - - 32,032,608 9,624,863 41,657,471
- 928,221 (1,185,377) 257,156 - -
- - 879,200 - - 879,200
- - - (29,344,929) - (29,344,929)
- - - - (9,624,863) (9,624,863)
- - - (102,276) - (102,276)
- 928,221 (306,177) (29,190, 049) (9,624,863) (38,192,869)
450,121,018 (5.433,824) 2,334,028 (77,503,527) 187,967,312 557,485,007
50 109
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OooooOodd
2017 2016 2017 2016
A 1,255,876 1,164,832 70,911 38,146
394 942 - -
(76,084) (69,636) - (15)
2,214) (68,508) - -
(67,340) - - -
596,273 30,111 - -
5,838 13,631 - -
- (176,662) - -
- O - 4
- - 718,900 456,978
- - 910,964 145,530
456,867 (270,126) 1,629,864 602,497
238,284 - 238,284 -
(24,959) (34,259) - -
(360,751)  (360,370) (360,751) (360,370)
(2.300,000) - (2.300,000) -
(117,875)  (118,198) (117,875) (118,198)
(192,500)  (475,000) - -
(2,739) (2,459) - -
(14,188) 10,135 - -
(2.774,728) (980,151) (2.540,342) (478,568)
(1,061,985) (85,445) (839,567) 162,075
4,963,436 5,002,063 3,771,777 3,565,367
(1,061,985) (85,445) (839,567) 162,075
(67,547) 46,818 (63,374) 44,335
18 3,833,904 4,963,436 2,868,836 3,771,777

73/251




50

109

74/251

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

OooooOodd
2017 2016 2017 2016

860,026 496,619 643,055 527,831
259,191 273,492 77 104
(311) (847) - -
14,855 5,464 - i
5,971 10,808 - -
23,721 23,207 - -
10,104 10,987 73 -
48,320 235,124 - i
- 456 - 456

- - 2,561 (119,452)

- - 3 40

- - 72,167 138,668

1,214 2,827 - -
(96,285) (996) - -
- 13,649 - -

4,331 (3,241) - -
10,765 10,741 7,513 8,282
406 147 - i
25,544 33,566 304 -
67,038 (44,732) 63,134 (45,758)
- - (719,244)  (457,187)
(71,094) (83,868) (92,678) (95,293)
(3,385) 6,234 - -
2 - - -

20 (38) (39) 40
300,407 492,980 (666,129)  (570,100)
1,160,433 989,599 (23,074) (42,269)
12,504 (4,472) - _
19,403 213,824 @11 -
65,801 (41,190) (885) (2,899)
97,708 168,162 (1,096) (2,899)
1,258,141 1,157,761 (24,170) (45,168)
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Ogoooood
76,258 71,572 95,314 83,331
(78,247) (64,375) (59) an
(276) (126) 174) -
1,255,876 1,164,832 70,911 38,146
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2017
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oOoOooodn

1,160,572 3,443 - 1,164,015
(192,500) (2,739) - (195,239)
- 2,253 238,284 240,537
- (312) (3,105) (3,417)
10,031 - 73 10,104
978,103 2,645 235,252 1,216,000
- - 238,284 238,284
- - (3,105) (3,105)
- - 73 73
- - 235,252 235,252

109
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2017 2016 2017 2016

A 102,265,983 94,852,270 5,774,283 3,106,229
32,083 76,707 - -
(6,195,520)  (5,670,459) - (1,221)
(180,286)  (5,578,606) - -
(5.483,496) - - i
48,554,510 2,451,939 - -
475,388 1,109,972 - -

- (14,385,587) - -

- (326) - 326

- - 58,540,027 37,211,719

- - 74,179,799 11,850,508
37,202,680  (21,996,360) 182,719,826 49,061,331
19,403,466 - 19,403,466 -
(2,032,411) (2,789,710) - -
(29,375,954) (29,344,929) (29,375,954)  (29,344,929)
(187, 289,000) - (187,289,000) -
(9,598,561)  (9,624,863) (9,598,561)  (9,624,863)
(15,675,275) (38,679,250) - -
(223,037)  (200,236) - -
(1,155,329) 825,293 - -
(225,946,101) (79,813,696) (206,860,049)  (38,969,792)
(86,477,439)  (6,957,786) (68,365,941) 13,197,767
404,172,593 407,317,990 307,135,801 290,327,835
(86,477,439)  (6,957,786) (68,365,941) 13,197,767
(5,500,352) 3,812,390 (5,160,545) 3,610,199
18 312,194,803 404,172,593 233,609,315 307,135,801
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2017 2016 2017 2016

70,031,917 40,439,685 52,363,969 42,981,278
21,105,923 22,270,454 6,270 8,469
(25,325) (68,971) - -
1,209,643 444,934 - -
486,219 880,095 - -
1,931,601 1,889,746 - -
822,769 894,671 5,944 -
3,934,698 19,146,147 - -
- 37,132 - 37,132

- - 208,542  (9,726,976)

- - 244 3,257

- - 5,876,559 11,291,735

98,856 230,203 - -
(7,840,488) (81,104) - -
- 1,111,438 - -

352,673 (263,915) - -
876,594 874,640 611,784 674,403
33,061 11,970 - -
2,080,048 2,733,279 24,755 -
5,458,904 (3,642,527) 5,141,002  (3,726,074)
- - (58,568,039) (37,228,737)
(5,789,184)  (6,829,371) (7,546,770)  (7,759,709)
(275,641) 507,635 - -
163 - - -

1,629 (3,094) (3.176) 3,257
24,462,142 40,143,361 (54,242,884) (46,423,243)
94,494,059 80,583,047 (1,878,916)  (3,441,965)
1,018,201 (364,155) - -
1,579,986 17,411,688 (17,182) -
5,358,175 (3,354,102) (72,066)  (236,066)
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7,956,362 13,693,432 (89.247)  (236,066)
102,450,422 94,276,478 (1,968,163)  (3,678,030)
6,209,689 5,828,108 7,761,419 6,785,643
(6,371,653)  (5,242,056) (4,804) (1,384)

(22,475) (10,260) (14,169) -
102,265,983 94,852,270 5,774,283 3,106,229
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94,505,378 280,363 - 94,785,741
(15,675, 275) (223,037) - (15,898,312)
- 183,462 19,403,466 19,586,928
- (25,406) (252,840) (278,246)
816,824 - 5,944 822,769
79,646,927 215,382 19,156,570 99,018,880
- - 19,403,466 19,403,466
- - (252,840) (252,840)
- - 5,944 5,944
- - 19,156,570 19,156,570

109
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2017 12 31
1.
2006
SGX-ST
IM2 4DF
098270
10
2.
2.1
IFRS
IFRS
@) 2017
2017 2017
IFRS
1AS
IAS 12

1AS
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® 2018
2018
IFRS @
IFRS 15 @
IFRIC 22 @
IFRS 16 @
(1) 2018
(2) 2019
IFRS
IFRS
2018 1 1
FVOCI
217,299,000
FVPL
14,257,000 2018 1 1
IAS 39
1AS 39
ECL

FVOCI
IFRS 15
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2018 1 1
2018 1 1
IFRS 15
IFRS 15
IAS 18 IAS 11
2018 1 1
2018 1 1
IFRS 16
IFRS 16
1,477,000
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©
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@
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2.20
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Doooooo
2.21
@
(b)
©
)
)
)
2.22

2.23
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2.24

2.25
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2017 2016 2017 2016

1,746,217 1,588,486 - -
644,228 637,450 - -
- - 719,244 457,187

- - 9,528 7,125
2,114 2,114 - 32
2,392,559 2,228,050 728,772 464,344
2017 2016 2017 2016
21,834 29,662 - -
304 - 304 -
743 1,036 - -
10,104 10,987 73 -
2,663 2,868 - -
35,648 44,553 377 -
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2017 2016 2017 2016
- 1,306 892 1,306 892
- 21,960 16,098 16,859 12,157
@
- 441,317 452,185 3,749 9,168
- 44,617 42,927 27 361
- 20 (38) (39) 40
- 3,700 4,222 448 1,763
- PuC 1,816 1,778 484 465
- 60 32 - -
1,006 299 16 26
@ 284,471 279,666 - -
- 259,191 273,492 77 104
- @11 (847) - -
- 14,855 5,464 - -
- 5,971 10,808 - -
23,721 23,207 - -
- 48,320 235,124 - -
- - 456 - 456
- - - 2,561 (119,452)
- - - 3 40
- - 72,167 138,668
1,214 2,827 - -
(96,285) (996) - -
- 13,649 - -
4,331 (3.241) - -
406 147 - -
108,335 (15,866) 93,695 (18,005)
- - (719,244)  (457,187)
(71,094) (83,868) (92,678) (95,293)
3,984 4,899 390 330
41,987 40,332 - -
41,955 52,626 - -
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14,141 15,712 5,606 3,250

@ 6,191,000 2016 14,344,000

&)
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OooooOodd
2017 2016 2017 2016
191,197 95,750 15,866 16,264
(17,827) 8,054 - }
173,370 103,804 15,866 16,264
26 (5,819) 12) 0
1,075 14,087 - 3
1,101 8,268 (12) %
174,471 112,072 15,854 16,257
860,026 496,619 643,055 527,831
(3.385) 6,234 - -
856,641 502,853 643,055 527,831
145,629 85,485 109,319 89,731
45,105 26,386 33,470 29,205
1,101 8,268 12) 0
(2.799) (2,392) - -
(409) (1,552) (36) (105)
(18,655) (6,583) (127,054)  (102,567)
674 1,480 167 -
3,825 980 - -
174,471 112,072 15,854 16,257
2017 2016
6,450 (1,256)
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2017 2016
601,000 266,349

2017 2016
12,024,712 12,011,735
25,024 26,944
12,049,736 12,038,679

2017 2016
5.00 2.22
4.99 2.21
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0ooooog
132,445 18,162 3,857,807 963,328 2,501,313 26,346 6,811 7,506,212
- - (568) “6) 3 - - (611)
- - 53,059 42,475 14,581 257 10,293 120,665
- - €)) (7,249) (267) (86) - (7,603)
- - (4,731) (15,912) (12,439) (2,114) (1,257) (36,453)
- - - 6,080 (575) - (5,505) -
- - - - (34,279) - - (34,279)
- - 146 631 (664) - - 113
132,445 18,162 3,905,712 989,307 2,467,673 24,403 10,342 7,548,044
- 4,162 550,901 875,660 824,872 9,029 - 2,264,624
- - (158) (486) 2 - - (202)
- 725 86,155 44,991 125,059 2,261 - 259,191
- - - (7,170) (267) 83 - (7,520)
- - (949) (15,439) (4,696) (514) - (21,598)
- - 682 180 5,109 - - 5,971
- - - 335 (335) - - -
- - - - (21,279) - - (21,279)
- 4,887 636,631 898,511 928,465 10,693 - 2,479,187
132,445 13,275 3,269,081 90,796 1,539,208 13,710 10,342 5,068,857
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2016

132,445 18,142 3,858,413 942,630 2,500,547 27,049 5,510 7,484,736
- - (2,311) 72) @ - - (2,384)
- 20 8,476 26,752 7,570 23 6,740 49,581
- - - (5,551) (23) - - (5,574)
- - (3,567) (9,843) (2,356) (726) (122) (16,614)
- - (99) 5,416 - - (5,317) -
- - (3,105) 3,996 (4,424) - - (3,533)

132,445 18,162 3,857,807 963,328 2,501,313 26,346 6,811 7,506,212
- 3,437 465,963 822,869 698,331 6,733 - 1,997,333
- - (515) (56) ®) - - (574)
- 725 80,538 67,435 122,345 2,449 - 273,492
- - - (5,277) () - - (5,285)
- - (799) (9,454) (744) (153) - (11,150)
- - 5,717 140 4,951 - - 10,808
- - (©) 3 - - - -
- 4,162 550,901 875,660 824,872 9,029 - 2,264,624

132,445 14,000 3,306,906 87,668 1,676,441 17,317 6,811 5,241,588
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783,724,000 2016 761,424,000 4,919,000 2016
4,530,000
2,253,000 2016 80,000
2017 2016

359 344

- 15
359 359
130 26
7 104
207 130

152 229
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2017

2016

23,721,000
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1,057 83,051 81,162 16,342 181,612
- - - 2,214 2,214

- @ - - @
1,057 83,049 81,162 18,556 183,824
- - 24,976 10,315 35,291
- - 22,522 1,199 23,721
- - 47,498 11,514 59,012
1,057 83,049 33,664 7,042 124,812
1,057 83,051 72,162 13,834 170,104
- - 66,000 2,508 68,508

- - (57,000) - (57,000)
1,057 83,051 81,162 16,342 181,612
- - 59,738 9,346 69,084
- - 22,238 969 23,207

- - (57,000) - (57,000)
- - 24,976 10,315 35,291
1,057 83,051 56,186 6,027 146,321

2016 23,207,000
CGU
2017 2016

83,047 83,047
2 4
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CGU
RWSPL
25 CGU
CGU
2017 2.00 6.24 2016
1.00 6.88 WACC
CGU
CGU
11.
2017 2016
DCP( ) 54,293 50,908
2008 15
SEHL RWSPL
SLM
DCP DCP
RWSPL SLM DCP 80 20

DCP RWSPL SLM DCP
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DCP

DCP
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OooooOodd

2017 2016
5,310 5,418
52,182 54,475
57,492 59,893
2,419 2,407
18,993 11,501
21,412 13,908
(3.379) (3,367)
(298) -
(3,677) (3,367)
(7,361) (6,799)
67,866 63,635
18,424 21,267
(3,072) (2,916)
87 100
- ©)
5,090 6,096
(859) (1,037)
4,231 5,059

2017 2016
63,635 58,576
4,231 5,059
67,866 63,635
54,293 50,908
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2017

2016

242,188
(43)

243,535
(40)

242,145
1,389,000

243,495
1,739,000

1,631,145

1,982,495

2017

2016

40

40

43

40

RWSPL

2017 2016

100% 100%

712

715

122/251
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2017

2016
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OooooOodd
2017 2016

26
(283,360) (300,102)
(283,308) (300,076)
10,027 13,219 16 23,262
10,027 13,219 16 23,262
(308,601) 3,639 - (304,962)
(1,502) (106) - (1,608)
(310,103) 3,533 - (306,570)
(300,076) 16,752 16 (283,308)
1,349 (1,349) - N
27,334 (20,876) 3,569 10,027
368 (368) - -
29,051 (22,593) 3,569 10,027
(309, 249) 648 - (308,601)
(1,306) (196) - (1,502)
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(310,555) 452 - (310,103)

(281,504) (22,141) 3,569 (300,076)
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@
@
(b)

@

2016
13,649,000

2017
67,340,000

(b)
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2017 2016
- 9,885
180,643 110,351
36,656 43,129
217,299 163,365
2017

50,000,000
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2017 2016 2017 2016
252,156 340,694 - -
- - 29,763 482,896
13,180 19,789 8,052 12,821
38 16 - -
- 223 - -
- 8 - -
- - 500,220 412,567
265,374 360,730 538,035 908,284
28(d)( ) (156,253)  (184,033) (78,989) (22,887)
109,121 176,697 459,046 885,397
9,365 13,585 3 1
8,421 7,461 101 114
126,907 197,743 459,150 885,512
- - 198,051 276,487
- - 270,000 300,000
_ - 468,051 576,487
28(d)( ) - - (50,507)  (113,959)
- - 417,544 462,528
3,040 3,054 - B}
3,040 3,054 417,544 462,528
770,220,000 2016 712,567,000 417,544,000

2016

462,528,000

12
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@)
2017 12 31 11,786,000
(b)
2016 12 31
LIDL
GIRML
)
()

LIDL
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12

100

GIRML 50

2016

258,386
256,883

515,269

2016

3,569

3,576
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2017
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2016
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OooooOodd
2017

258,386
256,312
514,698
4
3,585
3,589
511,109
96,285
(11,121)
596,273

2017 2016
4,291 8,823
19,123 27,094
25,186 25,593
48,600 61,510

79,105,000
81,509,000 )

2017 2016 2017 2016
3,135,417 4,299,698 2,503,635 3,533,043
698,487 663,738 365,201 238,734
3,833,904 4,963,436 2,868,836 3,771,777

117,276

103,088 - -
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2017 2016 2017 2016
526 2,874 28 69
188,156 163,698 8,257 5,777
53,054 11,275 - -
21,503 19,441 - -
66,156 51,499 - -
131,625 99,251 241 183
62 57 - -
107 103 95 98
- - 394,031 232,435
14 16 14 14
1,538 1,449 - -
462,741 349,663 402,666 238,576
35 - - -
2,351 4,177 - -
2,386 4,177 - _
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2017 2016 2017 2016
a 201,490 182,469 - -
21 1,647 3,121 - -
203,137 185,590 - -
a 776,613 978,103 - -
b 235,252 - 235,252 -
21 998 322 - -
1,012,863 978,425 235,252 -
1,216,000 1,164,015 235,252 -

@
2015 23
2020 23
10,000,000 2016 10,000,000
SDC
SDC
30
(b)
2017 10 24 20,000,000,000
240,240,000

0.669
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2017 2016

2,033 3,538
1,116 330
3,149 3,868

(504) (425)
2,645 3,443
1,647 3,121

998 322
2,645 3,443




22.

2017

2016

@

2017 20
10

(b)

2009
2,043,716,094
2009 23

2009
1,931,564,264
15.5
1,931,564,264

EDINETOOOO
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12,094,027 5,527,705 (79,651) (66,730)
- - 24,859 22,298
12,094,027 5,527,705 (54,792) (44,432)
12,094,027 5,527,705 (92,171) (78,129)
- - 12,520 11,399
12,094,027 5,527,705 (79,651) (66,730)
2009
2009
23
2009
2009 2009 10 21
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23.

2012

2012

5.125

2017
12,777,000
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00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

ooDoogd
12 31 2009
37,832
UK 30,675
70,000
172,722
412,271
169,648
236,717
1,129,865
415,386
1,545,251
12 1,800,000,000 5.125
100
18 500,000,000 5.125
100
2022 12 2022 10 18
2017 12 2017 10 18
45,746,000 46,505,000
13 2017 12
12,847,000 2017 18 2017 10 19
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2017 12 2017 10 19
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a)
b
c
@)
PSS
2007
PSS
PSS
PSS
208,853,893
PSS
PSS

1.004
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ooooood
2017 2016 2017 2016
11,043 28,663 11,043 28,663
14,257 17,349 - -
7,256 17,011 22 -
32,556 63,023 11,065 28,663
10 PSS PSS
PSS
2016 21
PSS
PSS
420,433,143
2017
2016 0.714
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750,000
Tan Hsieh Lee

(b)

©
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2017 2016
31,730,000 43,380,000
5,177,000 6,020,000
(1,118,000)  (5,150,000)
(24,859,000)  (12,520,000)
10,930,000 31,730,000
PSS
2017 2016
7,500,000 7,500,000
34,630,000 33,880,000
1,125,000 1,000,000
1,125,000 1,000,000
1,005,000 880,000
45,385,000 44,260,000

344,000 PSS
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25.
2017 2016
1.5 2016 1.5 180,372 180,185
1.5 2016 1.5 180,379 180,185
2017 2017 12 31
1.5 2017 12 31
2017 12 31 2.0
2018 12 31
26.
2017 2016 2017 2016
735 900 258 218
©)) (€H) - -
20 (38) 39) 40
(276) (126) (174) -
476 735 45 258

140/251



27.

@

®

©
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2017 2016
45,388 38,073
2017 2016 2017 2016
1,016 1,005 55 330
461 612 - 55
1,477 1,617 55 385
2017 2016
13,826 19,613
10,278 18,744
646 1,152
24,750 39,509
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2017 2016 2017 2016
103,852 43,129 - -
4,773 7,739 15,596 55,623
879,577 959,835 870,777 916,472
988,202 1,010,703 886,373 972,095
(2,154) (3,046) (522) (181)
(2,611) (3,383) - -
(4,765) (6,429) (522) (181)
983,437 1,004,274 885,851 971,914
2016
2017 2016 2017 2016
9,834 10,043 8,859 9,719
(9,834)  (10,043) (8,859) (9,719)
2016
2017 2016
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1,806 1,202
(1,806) (1,202)




©

@

14,132,000

2016

100

10
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100

10,790,000 2016

2016 34
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(

)

)

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

2017 2016
12,233 30,365
283 16,066
12 212 12,369
12 294 74
13,022 58,874
2017 2016 2017 2016
184,033 220,755 136,846 254,939
103,503 275,509 2,561 (118,996)
(131,348)  (312,244) (487) }
(25) 13 (9,424) 903
156,253 184,033 129,496 136,846
156,253,000 2016 184,033,000

147/251
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129,496,000
2016 136,846,000
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©
2017
* 396,585 - 35
231,960 230,253 579,576
1,586 1,586 241,568
2,033 1,031 85
632,164 232,870 821,264
2016
* 298,164 - -
216,200 236,111 813,380
3,538 320 10
517,902 236,431 813,390
2017
* 402,666 - -
1,586 1,586 241,568
404,252 1,586 241,568
2016

* 238,576 - -
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®
2017 2016 66
2017 2016
1,216,000 1,164,015
7,441,558 9,530,261
8,657,558 10,694,276
14% 11%
@

)

)

)
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14

14
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180,643 - 36,656 217,299
120,236 - 43,129 163,365
2017 2016
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43,129 71,514

(585) (6,379)

(5.888) (22,006)
36,656 43,129

2017 2016 2017 2016

4,069,666 5,256,806 3,745,429 5,119,703
217,299 163,365 - -
1,612,620 1,462,179 402,666 238,576
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GB
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OooooOodd
GOHL

2017 2016
2,176 1,962
1,171 1,061
3,347 3,023
(3,150) (2,802)
(18,424) (21,267)
(21,574) (24,069)
97 11,757

2017 2016
(741) (1,068)
(3,485) -
9,528 7,125
38,344 36,199
719,244 457,187
(190,611) (190,611)
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2017 2016 2017 2016
1,222 817 1,222 817
375 216 375 216
1,597 1,033 1,597 1,033
84 75 84 75
14,692 9,549 9,603 5,620
203 30 191 18
6,690 6,303 6,690 6,303
21,669 15,957 16,568 12,016
23,266 16,990 18,165 13,049
6,839 6,687 1,908 2,717
178 150 59 76
1,259 1,418 284 792

8,276 8,255 2,251 3,585
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EBITDA
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2017
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*

1,746,217 - - 1,746,217
644,228 - - 644,228
- 469 6,167 6,636
- - (4.522) (4.522)
2,390,445 469 1,645 2,392,559
EBITDA 1,172,064 (5,983) (14,907) 1,151,174
3,385 - - 3,385
(258,038) - (1,153) (259,191)
(23,721) - - (23,721)
6.480, 651 18,614 3,053,216 9,552,481
54,293 - - 54,293
52
9,606,826
120,464 - 201 120,665
2,214 - - 2,214
454,017 1,981 9,605 465,603
1,216,000
200,303
283,360

156/251
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*
2016
1,588,486 - - 1,588,486
637,450 - - 637,450
- 441 6,830 7,271
- - (5,157) (5.157)
2,225,936 441 1,673 2,228,050
EBITDA 799,539 (3,238) (17,305) 778,996
4,047 (10,281) - (6,234)
(272,391) - (1,101) (273,492)
(23,207) - - (23,207)
6,356,988 838,843 4,199,543 11,395,374
50,908 - - 50,908
26
11,446,308
49,440 - 141 49,581
68,508 - - 68,508
344,327 6,400 7,424 358,151
1,164,015
93,777
300,102
1,916,045

157/251




EBITDA

EBITDA

158/251

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

OoOoOoOoOodno

2017 2016
1,151,174 778,996
(4,331) 3,241
- (13,649)
(10,765) (10,741)
(109,337) 19,990
(282,912) (296,699)
71,094 83,868
(35,648) (44,553)
3,385 (6,234)
96,285 996
(18,919) (18,596)
860,026 496,619

2017 2016
2,392,182 2,227,509
377 541
2,392,559 2,228,050
5,243,700 5,433,394
7,302 8,477
5,251,002 5,441,871




31.

2018

23

10
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
Mote £'000 S'000 £'000 £'000

Ravenue 4 2,392,559 2,228,080 728,772 464,344
Cost of sales (1,317,709)  (1,638,652) = -
Gross profit 1,074,850 659,498 728,772 464,344
Other opearating income 171,665 104,868 113,731 113,663
Administrative expansas (161,581) (159,660) (30,645) (30,219)
Selling and distribution expenses (57,928) {54, 551) - -
Othar operating expenses (134,707) (32,743) (168,426) {19,257
Operating profit 802,289 547 408 543,432 527,831
Finance costs 5 (35,648) {44 553) {37T) -
Share of rasults of joint venturas and

associate 3,385 (B,234) - -
Profit before taxation & 860,026 495,619 543,055 527,831
Taxation I [174,471) (112,072) (15,854) {16,257)
Met profit for the financial year 685,555 354,547 627,201 511,574
Other comprehensive (loss)/income,

may be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss:
Available-for-sale financial assets

= Fair value lozs (T,413) (30,337) - -

= Reclassification to profit or loss 4,321 10,395 - -
Foraign currancy exchange differences 104 8,930 22 -
Feclassification of foreign currency

exchange differences 9,859) 3 - -
Other comprehensive {loss)/income for

the financial year, net of tax (12,847) 114,009) 22 -
Total comprehensive income for

the financial year 672,708 373,538 627,223 511,574

The notes on pages &0 to 109 form an integral part of thesa financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 CECEMBER 2017

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
Note £'000 5000 £'000 £'000
Net profit attributable to:
= Ordinary shareholders of the Company 601,000 266,349 542,646 3923 376
- Holders of perpetual capital securities 84,555 118,198 84,555 118,198
685,555 384,547 627,201 511,574
Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
- Qrdinary sharehalders of the Company 588,153 255,340 542,668 393,376
= Holders of parpatual capital sacurities 84,555 118,198 84,555 118,188
672,708 373,538 627,223 511,574
Group
2017 2016
Earnings per share attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company 8
Basic sarnings per share (cents) 5.00 2.22
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 4.99 2.21

The notes on pages 50 to 102 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
Mote £'000 $'000 $'000 £'000
MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipmeant 9 5,068,857 5,241,588 152 229
Intangible assels 10 124,812 146,321 = o
Inberasts in joint venture 11 54,293 80,908 - -
Interasts in subsidiaries 12 - - 1,631,145 1,982,495
Ceferred tax assets 13 52 26 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets 14 217,299 163,365 - -
Trade and other recsivablas 15 3,040 3,054 417,544 462,528

5,468,353 5,605,262 2,048,841 2,445,252

Current assets

Agzzats classified as held for sale 16 11,786 515,269 - -
Imvantories 17 48,600 61,510 - -
Trade and other receivables 15 126,907 197,743 459,150 886,612
Restricted cash 18 117,276 103,088 - -
Cash and cash eguivalents 18 3,833,904 4 063 436 2,868,836 3771777

4,138,473 5,841,046 3,327,986 4,657,289

Less: Current liabilities

Liabilities classified as held for sale 16 - 3,576 - -
Trade and other payables 19 462,741 349, 663 402,666 238,576
Barrowings 20 203,137 185,530 - -
Income tax liabilities 200,303 93,777 26,865 17.520

366,181 532,606 429,531 200,026
Net current assets 3,272,292 5,208,440 2,898,455 4,401,193
Total assets less current liabilities 8,740,645 10,813,702 4,947,296 6,848,445

The notes on pages &0 to 109 form an integral part of thesa financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
Note £'000 5000 £'000 £'000

Equity
Share capital 22 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705
Treasury shares 22 (44,432) (66,730) (44,432) (66, 730)
Perpetual capital securities 23 - 2,308,330 - 2,308,330
Other raserves 24 32,556 63,023 11,065 28,663
Retained earnings/{accumulated losses) 1,925,729 1,697,933 (782,339) (951,781)
Attributable to ordinary shareholdars and

perpatual capital sacurities holders 7,441,558 9,530,261 4,711,909 6,846,187
Non-controlling interests 2 2 - -
Total equity 7,441,560 2,530,263 4,711,999 G,846,187
Mon-current liabilities
Deferred tax Habilities 13 283,360 300,102 - -
Borrowings 20 1,012,863 978,425 235,252 -
Provizgion for retirement gratuities 26 476 735 45 258
Other payablas 19 2,386 4177 = =

1,299,085 1,283,439 235,297 258

Total equity and non-current liabilities 8,740,645 10,813,702 4,947,296 6,846,445

The financial statements from pages 32 to 109 were approved and authorised for issus by the Board of Directors on
23 February 2018 and signed on behalf by:

TAN SRI LIM KOK THAY MR TAN HEE TECK
Executive Chairman Director/Presidant and Chist Operating Officer

The notes on pages 50 to 102 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
Mote £'000 S'000 £'000 £'000

Met cash inflow from operating activities A 1,255,876 1,164,832 70,911 38,146
Investing activities
Property, plant and eguipmeant:

- Proceeds from disposal 304 042 - —

- Purchases {76,084) {69,636) - (18]
Additions of intangible assets (2,214) {68, 508) - -
Purchase of available-for-sale

financial assets (67 ,340) - - -
Procesds from disposal of assets and

liabilities classified as held for sale 596,273 30,111 - -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sals

financial assets, net of transaction costs 5,838 13,631 - =
Imvestmeant in an associate and

transaction costs - (176,662) = -
Increass in amount dus from joint veniure = (4 - 4
Dividend income received - - 718,900 456,978
Decrease in amounts due from subsidiaries - - 210,964 145,530
Met cash inflow/(outflow) from investing

activities 456,867 (270,128) 1,629 864 602,497
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of bonds, net of

transaction costs 238,284 - 238,284 -
Interast paid {24,959) (34,254) - .
Dividends paid (360,751) (360,370) [360,751) (360,370)
Redemption of perpetual capital securities (2,300,000} - (2,300,000) -
Perpetual capital securities distribution paid (117,875) (118,198) (117,875) (118,198)
Repayment of bank borrowings (192,500) (4 75,000) - -
Repaymeant of finance lease liabilities (2,739) (2,459) - -
Restricted cash (deposit (pledged)/

releaszad as security for loan and interest

rapaymeants) {14,188) 10,135 - -
Met cash outflow from financing

activities (2,774,728) (980, 151) (2,540,342) (478,568
(Decrease)fincrease in cash and cash

equivalents (1,061,985) (85,445) (839,567 162,075
Beginning of financial year 4,963,436 5,002,063 37,777 3,565,367
Mat {outflow)inflow {1,061,985) (85,445) (B39,56T) 162,075
Effacts of exchange rate changes ({67 ,547) 46,818 (63,374) 44,335
End of financial year 18 3,833,904 4,963,436 2,868 836 3771777

The notes on pages 50 to 109 form an integral part of thesa financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 CECEMBER 2017

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
Note £'000 5000 £'000 £'000
A Gash flows from operating activities

Profit before taxation for the

financial year 860,026 495,612 643,055 27,831
Adjustments for:
Property, plant and equipment:

- Depreciation 259,191 273,492 77 104

- Mat gain on disposal (311) (847) - -

= Written off 14,855 5,464 - -

— Impairment 5,97 10,808 - -
Amortisation of:

- Intangible assets 23,721 23,207 - -

- Borrowing costs 10,104 10,987 73 -
Impairment chargedf{write-back) on:

- Trade receivables 48,320 235,124 - -

- Other receivables - 456 - 456

- Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 2,561 (119,452)

- Investment in subsidianes - - 3 40
Waiver of amounts due from subsidiaries - = T2,167 138,668
Impairment on asset classified as held

for sale 1,214 2,827 - -
Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities

classified as held for sale (96,285) (20E) - -
Impairmeant on available-for-sale

financial assets - 13,649 - -
Lossfgain) on disposal of available-for-zale

financial assets, net of transaction costs 4,331 (3.241) - -
Share-based payment 10,765 10,741 7.513 8,282
Inventory write-down 406 147 - -
Finance charges 25,544 33,866 304 =
Unrealised forgign axchange lossgain) 67,038 (44,732} 63,134 (45,758}
Dividend income - - [7T19,244) (457 ,187)
Interest income (71,084) {83,8E68) (92,678) (25,293}
Share of results of joint ventures and

associate (3,385) 6,234 - -
Loss on liguidation of subsidiary 2 - - -
Provision/write-back) of retiremeant gratuities 20 [38) (39) 40

300,407 492,980 |666,129) (570,100}

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital 1,160,433 080 509 (23,07 4) (42 269}

The notes on pages 50 to 102 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

oOoOooodn

Note

A Cash flows from operating activities

(Continuead)

Changes in working capital:

Dacreasa/(increass) in inventaries
Decrease/(increass) in trade and ofher

receivables

Increase/{decrease) in trade and other

payablas

Cash generated from/(used in)

operating activities

interest received
Met taxation paid

Hetirement gratuities paid

Met cash inflow from operating activities

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Group
2017

Beginning of financial year
Principal payments

Additions

Mon-cash changes

Foraign exchange movameant
Amortization of borrowing cost

End of financial year

Company
2017

Beginning of financial year
Additions

Mon-cash changes

Foraign exchange movement
Amaortisation of borrowing cost

End of financial year

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 S'000 £'000 £'000
12,504 (4,472 = -
19,403 213.824 (211) -
65,801 {41,120 (B85) (2,899
97,708 168,162 {1,096) [2,893)
1,258,141 1,167,761 (24,170) {45,168
76,258 71,672 95,314 83,331
(78,24T) {64,375) (59) {17]
{276} (126) [174) -
1,255,876 1,164,832 70,911 38,1486
Bank Finance
borrowings leases Bonds Total
5000 5'000 5000 5'000
1,180,572 3,443 - 1,164,015
(192,500} {2,739 - {195,239}
- 2,253 238,284 240,537
- (312) {3,105) {3,417)
10,034 - 73 10,104
978,103 2,645 235,252 1,216,000
- - 238,284 238,284
= - {3,105) {3,105)
- - 73 73
- - 235,252 235,252

The notes on pages &0 to 109 form an integral part of thesa financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 CECEMBER 2017

1. GEMERAL

Genting Singapore PLC is incorporated under Isle of Man Companies Act 2006 and is listed on the Main Board
of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Uimited ("3GX-ST7).

The address of the registered office of the Company is First Names House, Victoria Road, Douglas, Isle of Man,
M2 4DF, British Islas.

The address of the head office of the Company is 10 Sentosa Gateway, Fesorts World Sentosza, Singapore
098270,

The Company's principal activity is that of an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Company’s subsidiaries include the development and operation of integrated resort, operation of casinos,
provision of sales and marketing support services lo leisure and hospitality related businesses and investments,

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1  Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards {*IFRS") under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies
badow.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires managemeant o exercise its
judgemeant in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or arsas whare assumptions and sstimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclogad in Note 3.

(a) Interpretations and amendmaents to published standards effective in 2017

On 1 January 2017, the Group has adopted the amended IFRS that are effective for financial year
baginning on or after 1 January 2017;

. Amendments to |AS ¥ Statement of Cash Flows - Digclosure Initiative
* Amendments to 1AS 12 Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses

The adoption of these amendments did net have any significant impact on the current period or
any prior period and 15 not likely to affect future periods,

The amendments to 1AS 7 Statermant of Cash Fows — Oisclosure Initiative sats out required
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changas in liabiiities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has included the additional required disclosures in the statements of cash flows to
the Financial Statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
{5]] Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2018 and after
Below are the mandatory standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that

have bean published, and are relavant for the Group's accounting pericds beginning on or after
1 January 2018 or later, which the Group has not early adopted:

* IFRS 2 Financial Instrumants”

* IFRS 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers™

* IFRIC 22 Forelgn Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’
* IFAS 16 Leasas™

U Applies to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application parmittad,
Appiies to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application permittad.

The Group's assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations are sat out
below.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and
financial lakilities, introduces a new impairment model for financial assets and new rules for hedge
accounting.

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities and is expecting the following impact
fram the adoption of the new standard on 1 January 2018;

The Group's instruments that are currently classified as available-for-sale financial assets do not
meeat the criteria to be classified either as fair value through other comprehensive income (“FYOCIT)
or at amortised cost, The entire amount of $217,2909,000 wil be reclassified to financial assets
al fair valus through profit or loss ("FVPL"). Related fair value reserve of 514,257,000 will be
transferred to retained earnings on 1 January 2018,

Thare will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial liabilities, as the new requirements
only affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at fair valus through profit
or loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities, The derecognition rules have bean
transferred from 1AS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have not baan
changed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 CECEMBER 2017

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

{b) Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2018 and after
(Caontinued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The new impairment mode! reqguires the recognition of impairment provisions based on expected
cradit losses ("ECL") rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case undar [AS 39 Financi
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. It applies to financial assets classified at amortised
cost, debt instruments measured at FYWOC, contract assets under IFRS 15, lease receivables, koan
commitmants and certain financial guarantes contracts. Based on the assessmeants undertaken
o date, the Group expacts a small increase in the impairmant allowance for trade receivablas,

The new hedge accounting rutes will not have any impact to the Group as the Group does not
hold any hedging instruments, and is not undertaking any hedging relationship or apply hadge
accounting.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosurs reguirements and changes in prasentation,
These are expectad to change the nature and axtent of the Group's disclosures about its financial
instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the new standard.

The Group will apply the new rules retrospectively from 1 January 2018, with the practical
expadients permitted under the standard, The cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised
in retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that comparatives will not be restated,

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 i2 a new standard issued for the recognition of revanue. Thiz will replace 1AS 18 Revenua
which covers contracts for goods and services and IAS 11 Construction Contracts which covers
construction contracts, The new standard is basad on the principle that revenue is recognised
when control of a good or service transfars to a customer, The standard pearmits either a full
ratraospective or a modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

The Group has assessed that the adoption of the new standard will not have any significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.

The Group wil apply the new rules retrospectively from 1 January 2018 using the modified
refrospective approach which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognisad
in retaimed earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that comparatives will not be raestated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

{5]] Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2018 and after
(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the statement of financial position,
as the distinction betwean cperating and finance leazaes is removed. Under the new standard,
an asset (the right to use the lease item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised.
The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases, The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change,

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of 21,477,000
(Note 27). The Group is still assessing the impact of the adoption of the standard, It is therefore
not yet possible to estimate the amount of right-of-use assets and |lease liabilities that will have
o ba recognisad on adoption of the new standard and how this may affect the Group's profit or
Ioss and classification of cash flows going forward,

At this stage, the Group doss not intend to adopt the standard before its effective date, The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts for
the year prior to first adoption.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact
on the entity in the current or foresesabls future reporting periods.

2.2 Group accounting
(a) Subsidiaries
i) Consolidafion

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an antity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from itg involvarment with the antity and has tha ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entiy.

Subsidiaries are consalidated from the date on which contral is transferrad to the Group
and are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases, All intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions batween the Group enfities are eliminated.
Uinrealised lossas are also eliminated unless the ransaction provides evidence of an
impairment indicator of the ransferred asset, Where necessary, accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adoplad by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 CECEMBER 2017

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Group accounting {Continued)
{a) Subsidiaries (Continued)
i Consolidation (Continued)

Mon-controlling interests are that part of the nat results of operations and of net assets of
a subsidiary attributable to the interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by the
aquity holders of the Company. They are shown separalely in the consolidated statement
of comprahensive income, statement of changes in equity and the statement of financial
position, Total comprehensive income is atiributed to the non-controlling interests based on
their respectiva interests in a subsidiary, even if this results in the nan-contralling interests
having a deficit balance,

{iif} Acquisitions

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by
the Group, Under this meathod, the cost of an acquisition of a subsidiary or business is
measured as the fair vaiue of tha assets given, equily instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of acquisition also includes the
fair value of any contingant consideration arrangament.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, previously held equity interast in the
acquires is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain
or loss is recognised in the profit or loss,

Acquisition-ralated costs are axpensed as incurrad,

Identifiable azsets acquired and liakilities and contingent liakilities azsumed in a buginass
combination are measurad initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

On an asquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquires at the date of acquisition either at fair value or at the non-controlling interast’s
propartionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assats,

The excezs of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill (see accounting policy note on
intangible asssts), If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair valus of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Group accounting (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)
(i) Disposals

Whan a changa in the Group”s ownarship interest in a subsidiary results in a loss of control
over the subsidiary, the assats and liabilities of the subsidiary including any goodwill are
deracognized. The profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference betwaan (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest; and {ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and the
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-contralling interests, Amounts previcusly recognised
in other compreheansive income in respact of that entity are also reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to retained earnings if required by a specific Standard.

Any retained equity interest in the entity s remeasured at fair value. The difference betwesn
the carrying amount of the retained interest at the date when control is lost and its fair
value is recognised in profit or loss,

(b)  Joint ventures

The Group's interasts in joint ventures are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Equity accounting involvas recognising the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results of joint ventures in profit or loss and its share of post-acquisition
movements within reserve is recognisad in other comprehensive incomea, Thase post-acquisition
movements and distributions are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.

The Group recognises the portion of gaing or losses on the sale of assets by the Group to the
joint vanturas that is attributable to the othar venturers. The Group does not recognize its share
of profits or losges from joint ventures that results from the purchasa of assets by the Group
from joint ventures, until it resellz the assets to an independent party. However, if a loss on the
transaction provides evidence of a reduction in the net realizable value of currant assets or an
impairment loss, the loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Where necassary, in applying the equity method, adjustments have bean madse to the financial
statements of joint venturas to ensure consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 CECEMBER 2017

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Group accounting {Continued)
{e) Associates

Associales are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanied by a shareholding giving rise to between 20% and 50% of the voling rights,
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment foss (see accounting policy note on impairment
of non-financial assets).

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or
Ioss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive incomea. The cumulative post-acquisition movements and distributions
received from the associates are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investments.

When the Group's share of lossas in an associate eguals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsscurad non-current receivables, the Group does not recognise further
lossas, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made paymeants on behall of the
associata, If the associate subsaquantly reports profits, the Group resumes recognizing its share
of thoze profits only after its share of the profits equals the shara of losses not recognised.

Unrealised gains on transactions bebween the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the associates. Unraalised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assat transferrad.

Whera nacessary, in applying the equity method, adjustments have baan made to the financial
statements of associates fo ensure consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.

When the Group loses significant influence, investments in associates are derecognised. Any
retained aquity interast in the entity is remeasured at fair value, The difference batween the camying
amount of the retained interest at the date when significant influence is lost, its fair valug and any
procesds on partial dispesal, is recognised in profit or loss.

{d) Transactions with non-controlling interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interast in a subsidiary that do not result in a foss of control
over the subsidiary are accounted for as transactions with equity owners of the Company. Any
difference between the changs in the carrying amounts of the non-controlling interest and the fair
value of the consideration paid or receivad is recognised within equily attributable to the equity
holders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.3 Revenue recognition

Revanue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and
sarvices in the ordinary course of the Group's activities, Revenue attributable to the award of benefits
measurad at fair value is deferred until they are utilised, Revenue is shown as net of goods and services
tax, and dizcounts and after eliminating salas within the Group.

The Group recognises revenus whan the amount of revenua can be raliably measzured, it is probable that
future economic banefits will fliow to the entity and specific criteria have bean met for each of the Group's
activities as described below. The amount of revenua is not considared to be reliably measurable unti
all contingencies relating to the sale have been rescived. The Group bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of sach
arrangamaent,
(a)  Revenue from integrated resort
Gaming revenue represants net house takings, which is the aggregate of wins and losses arising
fram gaming play. Revenue is reported after deduction of goods and servicas (ax, commissions,
discounts and loyally points awarded to customers,
Hotel room revenue is recognised based on room occupancy. Other hotel revenues, food and
beverage and refail sales are recognised when the goods are delivered or services are renderad

to the customers.

Attraction ravenues is recognised when tickets are used, Revenue from annual passes is amortised
aver the perind of their validity,

Convention revenue is recognized when the related services are renderad or the events are hald.

Rental income from retail cutiets, net of any incantives given to the leszes, is recognised on a
straight-line basiz over the pericd of the respective lease tarms.

(b} Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established,
(=] Management fee income

Managament fee income represents fees for management services provided and 15 recognisaed in
the pariod in which the services ara renderad.

(d) Revenue from sales and marketing services

Ravanus from sales and marketing services is recognised in the period in which the services are
rendered,

GENTING SINGAPORE ANNUAL REPORT 2017 | 57

178/251



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 CECEMBER 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4  Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method, When
a receivable s impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income, Interest income on impaired receivables is
recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash fiows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment except for freshold land is initially recognised at cost and is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including
borrowing costs and realised gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges incurred specifically for the
construction or development of the asset. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the depreciable amounts of property, plant and egquipment less their estimated residual values
over thair estimated usalul lives as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Freehold properties and improvements 30-60 years
Leasehold land, properties and improvements 30-99 years
Machinery, computer equipment, fixtures, fittings and maotor vehicles 2-5 years
Public attractions, thame park eguipment, mechanical and

electrical system and airgraft 10-30 years
Exhibit animals 5-15 years

Freehold land is stated at cost and is not depreciated. Leasehold land is depreciated over the lease
period of 60 to 99 years, Leasehold properties and improvements are depreciated over 30 to 60 years,

The depraciation of leasehold land is capitaised during the pedod of construgtion as part of construction-
in-progress in property, plant and agquipment until the construction is completed,

Subsequent cosls are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will low to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All other repair and maintenance costs are
charged to profit or loss during the financial year that they are incurred,

Construction-in-progress consists of assets and property under construction. Assets include acquired
computer hardwara, computer softwars licence and implementation cost incuwrred in bringing the computer
system to use.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost and is not depreciated. Costs include borrowing costs and
other directly relatad axpendilure mcurred durif'bg the period of construction and up 1o the completion
of the construction, Construction-in-progress relating to assets and property under construction is
reclassified to the respective cataegaories of proparty, plant and equipment upon complation of the project.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment {Continued)

For major construction-in-progress, the cost is supported by qualified quantity surveyors” certification
of work done.

Tha assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewead, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Where an indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is assessad and if it
iz estimated to be less than its camying amount, the carryving amount of the assets iz written down
immediately to its recoverable amount (sea accounting pelicy note on impaiment of non-financial assets),

Gains and lpsses on dispozal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in profit or loss.

246  Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill on acquisition

Goodwill on acquisition represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition,
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is tested at least annually for impairment and carried at
cost lgss accumulated impairment lossas. Impairmeant losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains
and lossas on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocatad to cash-generating units ("CGU™s) for the purpose of impairment tasting.
The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expectad o benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose, identified according to operating segment.

(b} Trademarks and tradenames

Trademarks and fradenames are initially recognised at cost and are subsaquantly carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses, Trademarks and tradenames have an indefinite usaful
life as it is maintained through conlinuous marketing and upgrading. Trademarks and tradenames
are tested annually for impairment. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount
of trademarks and fradenames are assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable
amount (see accounting policy note on impairment of non-financial assets),
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.6 Intangible assets (Continued)
(e} Licences

Casino and theme park licences are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Such cost is amortised using
the straight-line method over 3 to 30 years, which is the shorter of its economic useful life and
pericds of contractual right. The amortisation pericd and amortisation method are reviewed at
each reporting date. The effects of any revision are recognised in profit or loss whan changes
arsa, Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss unless the amount can be capitalised as part of
construction-in-progress. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carying amount of licence
is asssssed and writtan down immediately to its recoverable amount,

{d) Computer software
Computer software that does not form an integral part of other related hardware is tréated as an

intangible asset. Costs that are directly associated with development and acquisition of computer
software programmes by the Group are capitalised as intangible assets when the following criteria

are met:

* it iz technically feasible to complate the software product 2o that it will be availabls for use:

* management intends to complate the software product and use or sall it;

* there is an ability to use or sell the software produet;

. it can ba demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic
benefits;

. adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and o use

ar sell the software product are available; and

* the expanditure attributable to the software product during its developmant can be raliably
reasured.

Direct costs include staff costs of the software development team and an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads. Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are
recognisad as an expense when incurrad.

Expenditure that enhances or extends the performance of computer software programmes bayond
their ariginal specifications is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the ariginal cost
of the software.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.7 Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and asscciates are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses in the Group's and Company's statements of financial position. On disposal of investments in
subsidiaries, joint venturas and associates, the differences between disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts of the investments are recognised in profit or loss. Whare an indication of impairmant exists, the
carrying amount of the investmant is assessad and written down immediately to its recoverable amount
(se& accounting policy note on impairment of non-financial assets).

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, including goodwill, are not subject to ameortisation and are
tested at least annually for impairment, Assets that are subject to amortization and depreciation, and
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate are reviewed for impairment whenaver events
or changas in circumstances indicate that tha carrying amount may not ba recoverable, An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverabla amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an assst's fair valug 1855 costs to sell and valus in use, For the
purposas of assessing impairmeant, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are saparataly
identifiable cash flows (CGUs), Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment is charged to profit or loss, Impairment is reversad only to the extent that the reversal doas
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment been recognised in prior years for the same asset. The raversal is
recognised in profit or loss, Impairment on goodwill is not reversed once recognised.

2.9 Financial assets
(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivablas, and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial azsets weare acquired. Management detarmines the classification of its financial
assats at initial recognition.

i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those
designated at fair valug through profit or loss on initial recognition. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Financial agssts designated as at fair value thraugh profit or loss on initial recognilion
are thosa that are managed and their performances are evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the investment strategy of the Group, Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges, Assets in this category are classified
as current assats if they are either held for frading or are expected to be realised within
12 months of the reporting date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
{a) Classification (Continued)
it Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not guoted in an active market. They are included in curent assats,
axcepl for those with maturities or expected 1o be realised later than 12 months after
the raporting date, which are classified as non-currant assels, Loans and receivables
are presented as 'rade and other receivables’, ‘restricted cash' and ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ in the statements of financial position,

(i} Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assats are non-derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are includaed in non-current
assels unless the investment maturés or managemant intends to disposa of within 12
months after the reporting date.

{b) Recognition and derecognition

Purchases and zales of financial assets are recognised on trade date - the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sall the assat. Financial assets are derscognisad when the rights
o receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have baen transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,

On dizposal of a financial asset, the differance between the carrying amount and the sales
proceads is recognized in profit or loss. Any ameount in othar comprehengive income relating to
the asset is reclassified to profit or loss.

{c) Initial measuremeant
Financial assats are initially recognised at fair value plug transaction costs except for financial

assets carried at fair value through profit or loss, which are recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are axpansed in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
29 Financial assets {Continued)
{d) Subsequent measurement

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subseguently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequeantly carried at amortisad
cost using the effective interest mathod. Changes in the fair values of the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss including the effects of currency transtation, interest and dividends,
are recognised in profit or lozs when the changes arise.

Interast and dividend income on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised separataly
in income. Changes in the fair values of avallable-for-sale debt securities f.e. monetary items)
denominated in foreign currencies are analysed into currency translation differences on the
amortised cost of the securities and other changes; the currency translation differences are
recognised in profit or loss and the other changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve. Changes in the fair values of available-for-sale
equity securities (i.e. non-monelary items) are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve, together with the related currency transiation differences.

(=] Impairmant

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

For loans and receivables, an impairment is established when there is objective svidence that the
Group will not be able to coliect all amounts due according to the original terms of the financial
assets. Adverse changes in background, reputation and financial capability of the debtor, and
default or significant delay in payments are objective evidence that receivables are impaired. Thea
carrying amcunt of loans and receivables is reduced through the uze of an impairment allowance
account. The amount of the impairmeant iz the difference betwesan the assst's carrying amount
and the prezent value of estimated future cash flows, dizcountad at the effective interest rate.

When the asset becomeas uncollactible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsaquent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised against the same line items in profit
or loss.

The impairment allowance is reduced through profit or loss in a subsequent period when the
amount of impairment loss decreases and the related decrease can be objectively measured. The
carrying amount of the asset previously impaired is increased to the extent that the new carrying
amount doas not excasd the amortised cost had no impairmeant bean recogmised in prior periods,
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 CECEMBER 2017

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
{2}  Impairment (Continued)

For dabt securities classified as avallable-for-sale, the Group uses the criteria as above for loans
and receivables, For equity securities classified as avallable-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decling in the fair value of the security balow its cost is taken as evidence that the securities are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assats, the cumulative loss
that was previously recognised in other comprehensiva income is reclassified to profit or loss. The
cumulative loss is measured as the difference betwean the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impaiment loss previously
recognised as an expanse in profit or loss, Impaiment losses recognised in profit or loss on aquity
securities are not reversed through profit or loss.

210 Inventories
Inventonies are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method, Cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase and other costs incurrad in bringing
the inventornes to thalr present location and condition, Net raalisable valua is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expanses.

2,11 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised as a receivable at their fair value whan thers is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will camply with all the attached conditions,

Approved govennmant grants relating to qualifving expenditure are deferred and recognized in profit or
loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intendad to companzate,
unless they are directly attributable to the construction of an item of property, plant and equipment, in
which case, they are set off against the asset.

2.12 Cash and cash eaquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances (net of bank overdrafis), deposits held at call
with banks and other short tarm highly ligquid investmeants with original maturities of 12 months or less.

2.13 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognisad initially at fair value and subsequently maasured at amortised
cost using the affective interast method,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.14 Employee benefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employea benefits include wages, salaries, bonus and paid annual leave. Thesa benefits
are recognized im profit or loss whan incured and are measured on an undiscounted basis, unless
they can be capitalised as part of the cost of a self-constructed asset.

(b} Post-employment benefits

The Group confributes to defined contribution plans for some of its employees under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into the employeas provident funds in certain countries in which
it operates on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis and will have no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if those funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employeaes the benafits relating to sarvices provided in the current and prior periods. The Group's
contributions to such plans are recognised in profit or loss as employes benefits expense whan
they are dus, unless they can be capitalised as part of the cost of a self-constructed assst,

(=] Long-term employae banefits

The Group provides retirement gratuities under a retirement gratuity scheme that was established
in 1991 by the Board of Directors of the ultimate holding corporation for cartain executives and
executive directors of the Company and certain subsidiaries. The level of retirement gratuities
payable is in relation to the past services rendered. The gratuity is calculated basad on employess”
basic salary for each completed year of service, Such benefits vest an the employesas when thay
reach retirement age.

The prasent value of the retirament gratuities is determined by discounting the amount payable by
referance to market yvields at the reporting date on high quality corpoarate bonds or govarnment
bond which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Emploves
turnover is also factoned in arriving at the level of provigion for retirement gratuities. The differances
arising from the application of such discounting as well as any past senice costs and the effects of
any curtaiiments or settlements, if any, are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Such retirement
gratuities payable are classified as current liabilities where it is probable that a payment will ba
made within the next 12 months.

(d}) Share-based compensation benefits

The Group opsrates equity-settled, share-based compansation plans, where shares are issusd
by the Company o eligible executives and directors of the Group, The value of the employes
services received in exchange for the gramt of the shares is recognised as an expenss with a
carresponding entry to reservas aver the vesting period, The total amount 1o be axpensad over
the vesting period is determined by reference (o the fair valus of the shares granted at the grant
date and the number of shares vestad by vesting date, excluding the impact of any non-market
vasting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included in the estimates of the number of
shares that are expected to become vested.,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.14 Employee benefits (Continued)
{d) Share-based compensation benefits (Continued)

The fair value of services received from the employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in
exchange for the grant of the shares are essentially services rendered in the past, are charged out
to profit or loss immediately, unless they can be capitalisad as part of the cost of a self-constructed
asset. Before the end of the wasting pericd, at each reporting date, the Company will revise its
estimates of the number of shares that are expected to be vested at the vesting date and it
recognises the impact of this revision in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
After the vesting date, no adjusiment to profit or loss is made. For performance shares that
are expectad to be granted, dus to services received before grant date, the fotal amount to be
recognised over the vesting period is determined by refarence to the fair value of the performance
shares at the end of the reporting pericd, until the date of grant has been established. Upon
vesting of shares, reserves relating to the vested shares will be transferred to retained earmings.

Where the terms of a share-based compensation plan are modified, the expanss that has yet to
be recognised for the award, is recognised over the ramaining vesting period as il the terms had
not bean modified, Additional expansa is recognised for any increase in the total fair value of the
share due to the modification, as measured at the date of the modification.

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event, It is maore likely than not that an ocutfiow of resources embodying economic benafits will
ke raquired to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating lossas,

Frazent cbligations arising under onercus contracts are recognizged and measurad as provisions. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a contract under wihich the unavoidable
costs of mesting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits received under it,

2.16 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
zattliemeant of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, in which case thay are presantaed
as non-current liabilities.

Borrowings are recognisad initially at fair value (net of transaction costs) and subssquently stated at
amortised cost, Any difference betwesn the proceads (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method,

Borrowing costs including commitment fees on credit facilities, amortisation of transaction costs and
interest expenses are recognised in profit or loss unless they are directly attributable to the construction-
in-progress, in which case, they are capitalized as part of the cost of the self-constructed asset during
the construction period.

66 | GENTING SINGAPORE ANNUAL REFORT 2017

187/251



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
217 Leases
(a) When the Group is the lessee = Operating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
les=zors are classified as operating leases. Paymants made undar cparating leases (net of any
incentivas raceived from thea lessors) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over tha
period of the lease.

(b} When the Group is the lessee = Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leazes, Finance leases are capitalized af the lease's
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the lzased assets and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Lease payments are allocated between liability and finance charges.
The interest element of the finance costs is charged to profit or loss over the lease peried so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interast on the remaining balance of the liabiity for sach
period, The proparty, plant and equipment acquired under a finance lease is depreciated over the
sharter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the leasea term,

()  When the Group is the lessor - Operating leases

Leases where the Group retains substanfially all risks and rewards of ownarship are classified as
operating leases. Rental income from operating leasas (net of any incentives given to the lessees)
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added
to the carrying amount of the leazed azsetz and recognised as an expeansa in profit or loss over
the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

Lease incentives are racognized as othar receivables whera such incentives are provided by thea
Group and recognisad net of lease income in profit or loss over the lease term on the same basis
as the leasa income. Contingant rents are recognised as income in profit or loss when eamed.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.18 lIncome tax

The tax expense for the perod comprises current and deferred tax, Tax is recognised in profit or loss,
excapt to the extent that it arises from a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or different
perod, in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Tax relating to transactions or events
recognised in other compraheansive income or directly in equity is also recognisad in other comprahensive
income or directly in equity respectivaly.

{a) Current tax

Current tax is caloulated according to the tax laws of each jurisdiction in which the Company and
its subsiciaries operate and includes all taxes based upon the taxable income and is measured
uzing the tax rates and tax laws which are applicable at the reporting date.

{b) Deferred tax

Daferred tax is recognised for al temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, if the daferred
tax anses from initial recognition of an assat or lability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss, it is not accounted for.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enactad by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferrad income tax
assel is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled; and based on the tax conssquencas that
will follow from the manner in which the Group expacts, at the same reporting date, to recover or
sattle the carrying amount of its assats or liabilities.

Daeferrad tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Daferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, joint
veniures and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlied by the Group and it is probable that the temporary differance will not reverse in the
foregecable future.

2.19 Share capital, treasury shares and perpetual capital securities

Crdinary shares and perpstual capital securities are classified as equity when there is no contractual
obligation to deliver cash or other financial assels to another parson or entity or 1o exchange financial
assets or liabilities with anothear person or entity that are potentially unfavourable to the issuer.

Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new shares or oplions or perpetual capital securitias
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceads. The proceeds recaived net of any
directly attriputable transaction costs are credited to share capital or perpetual capital securities.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2,19 Share capital, treasury shares and perpetual capital securities ({Continued)

When shares recognised as equity are acquired, the consideration paid, including any directly atiributable
transaction costs, are recorded in the treasury shares account.

Upon complation of share cancellation, the carrying amounts of the sharas purchasaed are immediataly
transfarred from the capital redemption reserve and daducted against share capital.

When the Company purchases itz own crdinary shares ("treasury sharas”), they are presented as a
deduction from total equity until they are cancelled, sold or reissued.

Whean treasury shares are subsequently sold or reissued pursuant to equity compensation plans, the cost
of treasury shares is reversed from the treasury shares account and the realised gain or loss on sale or
reissue, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs, is recognisad in aquity.

220 Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale

Assats and disposal groups are classified as held for sale and carried at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell il their carrying amount is recovared principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use, The assets are nol depreciated or amortised whils thay are classifisd
as held for sale, Any impairment loss on initial classification and subssquent measurement is recognised
a5 an expense. Any subsequent increase in fair value less costs 1o sall (not exceeding the accumulated
impairment loss that has been previously recognised) is recognised in profit or loss.

221 Foreign currency translation
{a) Functional and presentation currency

ltams included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environmeant in which the entity operates ("the functiona
currency”). The consoclidated financial statemeants are presented in the functional currency of tha
Company which iz Singapore Dollars (“87).

(b} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each entity in the Group are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates pravailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the transiation at the closing
rates at the reporting date of monstary assets and liabilitizs denominated in forgign currencias
are recognisad in profit or loss,

Mon-maonatary ilems measurad at fair values in foreign currencies are translated using the exchangs
rates at the date when the fair values are determined.
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.21 Foreign currency translation ({Continued)
{g)  Translation of Group entities’ financial statements

The rasults and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinfiationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation cureancy
are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

{ij assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date;

(i} income and expensas are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average isnot a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates pravailing on the transaction
dates, in which casa income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions):
and

[iig all resulting exchange differences are recognised in othér comprehénsive income and
accumulated in the cwerrency translation reserve. Thesa currancy franslation differences are
reclassified o profit or loss on disposal of partial disposal of the entity giving rise to such
rasene,

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arizsing on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and translated at the closing rate at the reporting
date.

2.22 Dividand distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company”s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial stataments
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's sharaholdars,

2.23 Segment reporting

Cperating segments are reparted in a mannar consistent with the intarnal reporting provided o the chisl
operating decision-maker, The chief cperating decision-maker, who is responsitle for allocating resources,
making strategic decisions and assessing performance of the operating segments has been identified as
the Executive Chairman, and President and Chief Operating Officer of the Group and Company.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.24 GContingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Group doas not recogniss a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by uncertain future events beyond the control or a present obligation that is not recognised because it
iz not probable that an outfliow of rescurces will be required to sattle the obligation. When a change in
the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs 30 that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent azset is a possible azsat that arizses from past events whosa existence will be confirmed
by uncertain future evants beyond the control of the Group. The Group does not recognise contingent
assets but discloses their existence wheare an inflow of economic benefits is probable, but not virtually
certain, When an inflow of econgmic resources is virtually certain, the asset is recognised.

225 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantse contract is a confract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debitor fails 1o make payment when dus.
Financial guarantes contracts are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs and thereafter, at
the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the presant obligation at the end of
the reparting period and the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised,

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are basad on historical experience and
other tactors, including expectations of future events that are balieved to ba reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumplions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will
not necassarily equal the related actual results.

{a) Taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions in which the Group operates, mainly in
Singapore, Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes that includes
the estimate of the amount of capital allowances for items within the leasehold improvernents and fixtures
and fittings asset categories and the deductibility of certain expensas,

Where the final tax outcome of tax liabilities is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax liabilities and deferred tax assets and liabilities (Mote 7 and
Mote 13), where applicable, in the period in which such determination is made,
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3, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables

Management reviews its trade receivables for objective evidence of impairment, Adverss changes in
background reputation and financial capability of the debtor, and default or significant delay in payments
are considered objective evidence that a receivable is impaired, In determining this, managament makes
judgement as to whalther there is obsarvable data indicating that there has been a significant change in
the payment abllity of the debtor.

Whare there is objeclive evidence of impairmeant, management uses estimates based on credit-worthiness
of the debtors, past repayment history for each deblor and historical loss experience for debtors
with similar cradit risk characteristics to delerming the amount to be impaired. The methodology and
assumplions usad are reviewsd regularly to reduce any differences between the estimated loss and actual
loss experience, See MNote 28 (d) for the Group's management of credit risk and carrying amount of trade
receivables that are past dus and impaired/not impaired, and movement in allowance for impairment.

4, REVENLUE

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

2000 5000 5'000 $'000
Gaming operations 1,746,217 1,588,486 - -
Mon-gaming operations 644,228 G3T 450 - -
Dividend incarme = - 719,244 457,187
Management fees - - 9,528 7,125
Cihars 2,114 2114 - 32
2,392,559 2,228,080 728,772 464,344

5. FINANCE COSTS
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
5000 5000 5000 5000
Interest expense:

- Bank borowings 21,834 29 662 - -
- Bonds 304 - 304 -
- Finance leasea liabllites 743 1,036 - -
Amortization of borrowing costs 10,104 10,987 73 -
Othars 2,663 2.BE8 - -
35,648 44,553 T -
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Included in the profit before taxation are the following expenses/income) by nature:

Group Company
207 2016 2017 2016
£'000 £'000 S'000 £'000

Directors’ remuneration:

- Fees and meesting allowances 1,306 a2 1,306 g9z

— Other amoluments 21,960 16,098 16,859 12,157
Employee banefits (excluding directors’

remuneration)":

= Salaries and related costs 441,317 452185 3,749 9,168

- Employer’s contribution to defined

contribution plan 44,617 42,927 27 361

- Provigiondwrite-back) of retirement gratuities 20 (38 (39) 40

= Share-based payment 3,700 4,222 448 1,763
Auditors” remuneration

- PwC Singapora 1,816 1,778 484 485

- Other auditors 60 a2 - -
Mon-audit fees paid/payvable to auditors 1,006 299 16 26
Duties and taxes” 284 471 272 666 - =
Property, plant and equipment:

- Depreciation 259,191 273492 77 104

- Met gain on disposal (311) (B47) - -

- Written off 14,855 5,464 . -

= Impairment 5971 10,808 - -
Amaortisation of intangible assats 23,721 23,207 - -
Impairment charged/{write-back} on:

- Trade receivables 48,320 238,124 - -

- Other receivables - 456 - 456

- Amounts due from subsidiarias - - 2,581 (119,452

= Imvastment in subsidiaries = - 3 40
Waiver of amounts due from subsidiaries - - 72,167 138,668
Impairmant on asset classified as hatd for sale 1,214 2,827 - =
Gain on disposal of assats and liabilities

classified as hald for 2ala (96,285) (996) - -
Impairmeant on available-for-zaie financial assats - 13,649 - -
Lossf(gain) on disposal of available-for-sale

financial assets, net of transaction costs 4,331 13,241) - -
Inventary write-down 406 147 - -
Met foreign exchange lossdgain) 108,335 (15,866) 93,695 {18,005)
Dividend incomea - - (719,244) {457,187
Interast income (71,004) {B3,86E) (92,678) {95,203)
Hental expensas on operating leases 3,984 4,899 390 330
Advertising and promaotion 41,987 40,332 - -
Litilities 41,955 52 626 - -
Legal, professional and management fees 14,141 15,712 5,606 3,250

1 The Group received government grants of 36,191,000 (2016: 314,344,000 that were set off against the qualifying employee
compensation.
I Includes property tax and casino tax that is levied on the casing's gross gaming revenue.
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7. TAXATION

Taxation for current financial year:
= Current tax
= Defarred tax

Underf{over) provision in prior financial
years:
= Gurrent tax
— Deferred tax

Total tax expense

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before taxation
Share of results of joint ventures and assoclate,
net of tax

Frofit before taxation and share of results of
jzint ventures and associate

Tax caloulated at tax rate of 17%

Tax effects of:
- Expensas not deductible for tax purposes
= Under/{owear) provision in prior financial years
- Different tax rates in other countries
- Tax incentives
— Income not subject 1o tax
— Defarred tax assals not recognised
- Withholding tax

Total tax expense

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 £'000 $'000 £'000
191,197 95,780 15,866 16,264
(17,827) 8,054 - -
173,370 103,804 15,866 16,264
26 (5,819) (12} (7}
1,075 14,087 = -
1,101 8.268 (12} (7}
174,471 112,072 15,854 16,257
860,026 496,619 643,055 L27.,831
(3,385) 6,234 - -
856,641 502,853 643,055 S27.831
145,629 86,488 109,319 89,731
45,105 26,386 33,470 29,205
1,104 B.268 {12} 7
(2,799) {2,392) - -
(409) {1,552) [38) (105}
(18,655) 6,583 (127,054) (102,567)
674 1,480 167 =
3,825 980 - =
174,471 112,072 15,854 16,257
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TAXATION (CONTINUED)
Income tax recognised directly in equity is as follows:

Group and Company

207 2016
£'000 £'000
Tax creditfcharge) arising from perpetual capital securities 6,450 {1,258)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share have bean caleulated based on Group's nat profit attributable
o ordinary shareholdars divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding.

Group
2017 2016
§'000 5'000
Met profit atiributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company 601,000 266,349
Group
2017 2016
"000 '000
Waightad average number of ordinary shares of the Company 12,024,712 12,011,735
Adjustment for:

- Share-basad compensation plans 25,024 26,844
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company 12,049,736 12,038,679
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary shargholdars of the Company is as follows:

Group
2017 2016
Basic eamings per share (cants) 5.00 2.22
Diluted sarnings per share (cants) 4.99 2.21
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 CECEMBER 2017

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The net book value of leasehold land, certain machinery and mofor vehicles held under finance leases are
§783,724,000 (2016: 5761,424,000) and $4,919,000 (2016: $4,530,000) respectively. Included in additions are
machineries acquired under finance leases amounting to 2,253,000 (2016; $80,000).

Computer equipment,
fixtures and fittings

2017 2016
Company £'000 £'000
Cost
Beginning of financial year 359 44
Additions - 15
End of financial year 359 359
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of financial year 130 26
Depreciation 7T 1
Erdd of financial year 207 130
Net book value
End of financial year 152 229
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10.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Trademarks/ Goodwill on Computer

Tradenames acquisition Licences software Total
Group $'000 £'000 $'000 £'000 £'000
2017
Cost
Beginning of financial year 1,057 83,051 81,162 16,342 181,612
Additions - - - 2,214 2,214
Disposal of subsidary - (2) - - i2)
End of financial year 1,057 83,049 81,162 18,556 183,824
Accumulated amortisation
Beginning of financial vear - - 24976 10,315 35,291
Arnortization - - 22522 1,199 23,71
End of financial year - - 47,498 11,514 59,012
Net book value
End of financial year 1,057 83,049 33,664 7,042 124,812
2016
Cost
Beginning of financial year 1,067 83,051 72,162 13,834 170,104
Additions - - 66,000 2,508 68,508
Written off - B (57,0000 - (57,0000
End of financial year 1,067 83,061 81,162 16,342 181,612
Accumulated amortisation
Beginning of financial year - = 58,738 9,248 €9,084
Amartization = - 22,238 SED 23,207
Written off - - (57,0000 - (57.000)
End of financial year - - 24 976 10,315 35,291
Net book value
End of financial year 1.057 83,051 56,186 6,027 146,321

Amaortisation expensa of 523,721,000 (2016; 523 ,207.000) has been included in cost of sales,
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10.

11.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS ([CONTINUED)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's CGUs identified according to geographical area. A segmeant-level summary
of the allocation of goodwill with indefinite useful life is as follows:

Group
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Goodwill attributable to:
Singapore 83,047 83,047
Malaysia 2 4
83,049 83,051

The goodwill attricuted to the Singapore CGU mainly arcsse from the acqguisition of the remaining 25% eguity
interast in Resorts World at Sentosa Ple. Ltd. ("RBWSPL™) which developed the first integrated resort in Singaporne.
The impairment test for goodwill relating to the Singapore CGU was assessed using the value-in-use method.
Cash flow projections usead in this calculation were based on financial budgsets approved by management, The
cash flow projection covers a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-yvear period were extrapolated using
the estimated growth rate stated below. The growth rate did not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the leisure and hospitality industry in which the CGU operates.

Key assumptions usad in the value-in-use calculation for 2017 include a growth rate and weighted average cost
of capital ("WACC") of 2.00% and 6.24% [2016: 1.00%, 5.88%) respectively.

Based on the impairment test, no impairment is required for goodwill attibuted 1o the Singapore CGLUL A
reasonably possible change in a key assumption on which management has based its determination of the

CGU's recoverable amount would not cause [ts carrying amount to excead its recoverable amaount.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE

Group
2017 2016
000 S'000
Share of net assets of joint vantura:
DCP (Sentosa) Pte. Ltd. 54,203 50,908

On 15 April 2008, RWSPL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Star Eagle Holdings Limited ("SEHL}, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, enterad into a joint venture with Sentosa Leisure Management Phe, Ltd, ("SLM™) to
build and operate a district cooling plant on Santosa Island, Singapore, through the Tormation of DCP (Sentosa)
Fra, Lid. "DCP"), a private company incorparated in Singapora, BWSPL and SLM own 80% and 20% of the
share capital of DCP respactively. DCP is deamed to be a joint vanture of the Group, as both BWSPL and SLM
have contractually agreed to the sharing of control in DCP.

80 | GENTING SINGAPORE ANNUAL REFORT 2017

201/251

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

11.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)

The summarised financial information of DCP is as follows:

Non-current assets
Intangible assel - leasehold land use right
Property, plant and equipment

Current assets
Trade and other recaivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Income tax liabilities

MNon-current liability
Deterred tax habilities

Net assaets

Revenue

(Expenses)/income include:
= Depreciation and amortization
= Interest income
- Interest expense

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation and total comprehensive income

DCP does not have any contingant liabilities,

2017 2016
£'000 §'000

5310 5418
52,182 B4 475
57,492 59,893
2,419 2407
18,993 11,501
21,412 13,908
(3,379) {3,367)
(298) -
(3,677) (3,367)
(7,361) {6,792
67,866 63,635
18,424 21,867
(3,072) (2,916)
&7 100

- {3)

5,080 6,006
(859) {1.037)
4,231 5,058

Reconciliation of the summansad financial information prasentad, to the carrying amount of the Group's inlarast

in DCP, is as follows:

Met assets
Beginning of financial year

Profit after taxation and total comprehensive income

End of financial year

Carrying value of Group's interest in DCP

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
63,635 £8,576
4,231 5,058
67,866 £63,635
54,293 50,808
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12.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unquoted shares = at cost
Less: Allowance for impairment

Amount due from subsidiary

HNet investment in subsidiaries

The movements in alowance for impairmant are as follows:

Beginning of financial year
Allowance charged to profit or loss

End of financial year

Datails of the Company's significant subsidiary are as follows:

Company
2017 2016
$'000 £'000
242,188 243 535
[43) (40}
242,145 243,485

1,389,000 1,738,000
1,631,145 1,982 495

Company
2017 2016
$£'000 £'000
40 -
3 40
43 40

Effective
Country of aquity interest
Indirect subsidiary incorporation 2017 2016 Principal activities
RWSPL Singapaore 100% 100% Development and operation of

an Integrated Resort at Sentosa

The financial statements of this subsidiary are audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Singapore.

The Group has complied with Rule 712 and 715 of the listing manual issued by Singapore Exchange Sscuwrities

Trading Limited in relation to the appointment of its auditors,

The amownt due from subsidiary s non-trade in nature, unsacured and interest-free. Repayments are not
axpected within the next 12 months. This amount is considered part of net investments in subsidiaries.
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13.

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset whan there is a legally enforceabls right to offsat current tax assets
against currant tax Babilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax autharity, The following amounts,

determined prior to offsetting, are shown in the statements of financial position:

Group
2017 2016
£'000 S'000
Deferred tax assets
To be recoverad after one year 52 26
Deferred tax liabilities
To be seitied after one year (283,360) (300,102)
Total deferred taxes (283,308) [300,076)
Details of deferred taxes, prior to offsetting are as follows:
Credited/ Reclassified End of
Beginning of (Charged) to  to liabilities financial
financial year profit orloss held for sale year
Group S'000 2000 £'000 £'000
2017
Defarred tax assets
Provisions 10,027 13,219 16 23,262
10,027 13,219 16 23,262
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (308,601) 3,639 - (304,962)
Intangible assats {1,502) {1046) - {1,608)
{310,103) 3,533 - (306,570)
Total deferred taxes {300,076) 16,752 16 (283,308)
2016
Deferred tax assets
Froperty, plant and equipmeant 1,342 (1,349) - =
Provisions 27,334 120,876) 3,569 10,027
Tax losses 368 (268) - -
29,051 122,503) 3,562 10,027
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (:209,245) 545 - (308,801)
Intangible assets {1,306} {196) - {1,502
(310,555} 452 - (310,103)
Total deferrad taxes 281,504) 22141 3,569 [-300,076)

Defarred tax assets are recognisad for tax losses and capital allowances carried forward to the extant that the

oOoOooodn

realisation of the related tax benefits through future taxable profits is probable.
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14.

15.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Quoted equity securitias (a)
Cuoted debt sacurities (a)
Unqueted debt securities (b)

Group
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
- 8,885
180,643 110,351
36,656 43,129
217,299 183,385

{a) The investmeants in guoted eguity securities and portfolic of quoted debt securities have no fixed maturity

or coupen rate.

The Group recognised an impairment of 313,649,000 on guotad equity securities in 2016 due to a
significant and proloenged decling in value. The quoted equity securities were fully disposed in 2017.

The Group invested in foreign currency denominated investment with a amount of US350,000,000
{approximately $67,340,000) in quoted debts securlties in 2017,

bl The investments in ungquoted debt securities represent unguoted investment in a foreign corporation and

an investmant fund.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Currant
Trade receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables
Amounts due from:
- Fellow subsidiarias
- Disposal group held for sale
= A joint venture
Loan to a subsidiary

Less: Allowance for impalrment (Mote 28{d)(ii)}

Deposits
FPrepaymants

Mon-current
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Loan 1o a subsidiary

Less: Allowance for impairment (Mote 28{(d)(ii)}

Prepayimeants

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
252,156 340,604 - B
- - 29,763 482 896
13,180 19,789 8,052 12,821
38 16 - -
- 223 - -
- 8 - -
- - 500,220 412,567
265,374 360,730 538,035 208,284
{156,253) {184,033 (78,989) (22,887
109,121 176,687 459,046 885,397
9,365 13,585 3 1
8,421 7,461 101 114
126,907 197,743 459,150 885 512
- - 198,051 276 487
_ = 270,000 500,000
- - 468,051 576,487
- - {50,507) (113,953
- - 417,544 462,528
3,040 3,064 - -
3,040 3,064 417,544 462 528
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

13.

16.

TRADE AND OTHER REGEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The loans and amounts due from subsidiaries are mainky non-trade in nature, unsaecured and interest-free excapt
for 8770,220,000 (2016: $712,567,000) which are interest bearing, and $417,544 000 (2016: 3482 528,000)
which repayments iz not expected within the next 12 months. The cumrent loan and amounts dus from
subsidiaries are repayable on demand.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
{a) Asset classified as held for sale

Az at 31 Decembear 2017, the asset classified as hald for sale of 511,786,000 rapresants an aircraft
owned by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company. The sale of this asset is expected to be complated
within the next 12 months,

(b} Disposal group classified as held for sale
Az at 31 Decamber 2016, the dispozal group classified as hald for sale raprasanted the following:

* Algona Ple, Lid., a direct wholly-owned subsidiary, enterad into a conditional sale and purchase
agreemeant with Landing International Development Limited ("LIDL") to dispose its 100% interast
in Callisto Business Limited ("Calliste™), Callisto’s disposal includes its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Happy Bay Pta. Ltd., which in turn owns 0% of Landing Jeju Development Co., Ltd. (*Callisto
Group”) that is developing an integrated resort in Jeju, Korea,

* Ganting Intarnational Resorts Managemant Limited ("GIRML"), an indirect whaolly-ownad subsidiary,
anterad into a conditional sale and purchase agresment with LIDL's direct wholly-cwned
subsidiary, Landing Singapore Limited to dispose GIBML s 50% interast in Autumnglow Pte, Lid.
(“Autumnglow).

1] Details of the assets of disposal group classified as held for sale wers as follows:

Group

2016

S'000
Interast in associate 253,386
Trade and other receivablas 256,883

515,269

(i} DCetails of the liabilities directly associated with disposal group classified as held for sale were as

foflows:
Group
2016
£'000
Share of net liabilitizs of joint venture 4
Trade and other payables 3
Deferred tax liabilities 3589
3,676

The Group completed the dispesals of Callisto Group and Autumnglow (“disposal group®) on
3 January 2017.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 CECEMBER 2017

16. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

(b) Dispoasal group classified as held for sale {Continuad)

The effects of the disposal of the disposal group an the cash flows of the Group were as follows:

Carrying amounts of assets and liabilities disposed

Interest in associate
Trade and other recaivablas

Share of nat liabilities of joint venture
Deferred tax liabilities

MNet assets disposed
Gain on disposal
Lass: Currancy translation differences

Proceeds from disposal

17.  INVENTORIES

Retail stocks
Food, beverage and hotel supplies
Stores and technical spares

Group
2017
£'000

258,386
256,312

514,698
4

3,585

3,589
511,109
96,285

_ (11121)

596,273

Group
2017 2016
$'000 £'000

4,291 8,823
19,123 27,024
25,186 25,593

48,600 61,510

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted to 379,105,000

(2016:; 881,500,000,

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH

Short term deposits with banks
Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents in the
statements of cash flows

Restrictad cash

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 S5'000 S'000 £'000
3,135,417 4,299 608 2,503,635 3,533,043
698,487 663,738 365,201 238,734
3,833,004 4 963 436 2,868,836 3,771,777
117,276 103,088 - -

Restricted cash represents deposit pledged as security for bank borrowings and interest repayments (Note 20},
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
207 2016 2017 2016
S'000 S'000 S'000 £'000
Current
Trade payables 526 2,874 28 &g
Accruaed operating liabilities 188,156 163,628 8,257 5777
Accrued capital expenditure 53,054 11,275 - =
Hetention monies and deposits 21,503 19,441 - -
Deterred income 66,156 51,499 - -
Other payables 131,625 29,251 241 183
Amounts due to:
= Ultimate holding corporation &2 &7 - -
= Immediate holding corporation 107 105 a5 98
- Subsidiaries - - 394,031 232,435
- Fellow subsidianies 14 16 14 14
= Joint venture 1,538 1,449 - -
462,741 349,663 402,666 238,576
Non-current
Retention monies and deposits 35 - - -
Deterred income 2,351 4 477 - -
2,386 4177 - -

Retention monies refer to amounts withheld from contractors’ claim for work done in accordancs with contractual
rights, which are progressively released upon the completion of the project,

The amounts due to ultimate holding corporation, immediate holding corporation, subsidiaries and feliow
subsidiaries are mainly non-trade in nature, unsecured, Interest-iree and are repayable on demand.

BORROWINGS
Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

S'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current
Bark borrowings (a) 201,480 182,480 - -
Finance lsases (Note 21) 1,647 321 - -

203,137 185,580 - -
Non-current
Bank borrowings (a) 776,613 978,103 - -
Bonds (b) 235,252 - 235,252 -
Finance lzasas (Note 21) 298 322 - —

1,012,863 978425 235,252 =

Total borrowings 1,216,000 1,164,015 235,252 -
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20. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
(a) Bank borrowings

The repayment of the bank borrowings commenced on 23 September 2015 with half-yearly repayment
dates. All bank borrowings must be repaid by 23 March 2020, The carrving amounts of non-current
borrowings approximate their fair values at the reporting date.

Banker's guarantees of 510,000,000 (2016: 510,000,000} were obtained and held by Sentosa
Development Corporation ("SDC"), as part of the conditions in the Development Agreement entered into
with SDC.

These banker's guarantess and the bank borrowings of the Group are substantially secured over assets
of the Singapore leisure and hospitality business ssgment (Note 30).

(b) Bonds

On 24 Qetober 2017, the Company issued an unsecured and unsubordinated Japanass Yean-denominated
bonds with a principal amount of Japaness Yen 20,000,000,000 (approximately S240,240,000) in Japan,
acting through its Japan branch, The bonds have a coupon rate of 0.669% per annum and are dus for
rapayment five years from the issue date,

21. FINAMCE LEASES
The Group leases certain machinery and motor vehicles from third parties under finance leases. The lease

agreements do not have renawal clausas but provide the Group with options to purchase tha leased assets at
nominal valug at the end of the lease term,

Group
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Finance lease liabilities — minimum lease payments:
- No later than one year 2,033 3,538
- Betwean ong and five years 1,116 330
3,149 3,668
Less: Future finance charges on finance leases (504) {425)
Present valus of finance lease liabilities 2,645 3,443
Tha presant value of finance leaze Rabilities iz as follows:
- Mo later than one year (Note 20) 1,647 3,121
- Batwean one and five years (Note 20) 908 322
2,645 3,443

Finance lsase liabilities are secursd by the rights to the lsased assets (Mote 9), where the lessors shall be entitlad
to ownership of the assats in the event of default by the Group.
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SHARE GAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES

The share capital and treasury shares of the Group and Company is sat out below:

Share capital Treasury shares
Mo. of shares Amount MNo. of shares Amount
'000 £'000 "000 £'000

2017

Beginning of financial year 12,094,027 5,527,705 (79,651) (66,730)
Treasury shares re-issusd - — 24,850 22,208
End of financial year 12,084,027 5,527,705 (54,792) (44,432)
2016

Beginning of financial year 12,094,027 5,027,705 92,171} (78.129)
Treasury shares re-issued - - 12,520 11,5989
End of financial year 12,094,027 5,627,705 [F2,651) (B6,730)

All issued ordinary shares are fully paid. There is no par value for these ordinary shares.
{a) Treasury shares

At the Annual General Meating (*AGM") of the Company held on 20 April 2017, the shareholders of the
Company approved the renewal of the authority for the Company to purchase its shares of up to 10%
of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at any paint in tims.

During the financial year, the Company did not acquire any of its shares through purchases an the
SGX-5T.

{b) Renounceable underwritten rights issue (“2009 Rights Issua™)

The Company had on 9 Ssptember 2008 announced that the Company would be undertaking a
rencunceable rights issue of up to 2,043,716,094 new ordinary shares in the capital of the Company
at an issue price of $0.80 for sach rights share on the basis of one right share for every 5 axisting
ordinary shares in the Company held by the shareholders on 23 September 2009, Based on the issuad
share capital of the Company on 23 September 2009, 1.931.564.264 rights shares were available
under the 2009 Rights Issue. The 2009 Rights Issue was oversubscribed and raised gross procesads
of approximataly $1.55 billion for the Company. The 2002 Rights |1ssue was completed on 21 October
2003 with the listing and quotation of 1,931,564 264 rights shares on the Main Board of the SGX-2T.
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22. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES (CONTINUED)
{b)  Renounceabls underwritten rights issue (“2009 Rights 1ssue”) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the procesds from the 2002 Rights Issus have been utilised in accordancs
with its stated use and the breakdown is as follows:

£'000
Cost of issuance 37,832
Repaymeant of term loan facilities taken for the acquisition of Genting UK PLC 30,675
Met repayment of revolving credit facility taken for the working capital of
the Group's UK operations 70,000
Subscription of shares in subsidiaries 172,722
Lean to an associate 412,271
Purchase of property, plant and eguipmeant 169,648
Paymant of operating expenses of the Company and its subsidiaries 236,717
1,129,865
Balance unutilised 415,386
Total proceeds 1,545,251

23. PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES

On 12 March 2012, the Company issued $1,800,000,000 5.125% perpetual capital securities (“Institutional
Securities”) at an izsue price of 100 par cant.

On 18 April 2012, the Company issued 3500,000,000 §.125% perpetual capital securities (“Retail Securities®)
at an issue price of 100 per cent.

Holders of these Institutional and Retail Securities are conferred a right to receive distribution on a semi-annual
basis from their issue date at the rate of 5.125% per annum, subject to a step-up rate from 12 Saptembear 2022
and 18 Octobar 2022 respaectively. The Company has a right to dafar this distribution under certain conditions.

Tha Institutional and Reatail Securities have no fixed maturity and are redesmable in whole, but not in part, at tha
Company's option on or after 12 September 2017 for the Institutional Securities and 18 October 2017 for the
Retail Securities at their principal amounts together with any accrued, unpaid or defarred distributions, While
any distributions are unpaid or defarred, the Company will not declare, pay dividends or make similar pericdic
payments in respect of, or repurchase, redeam or otherwise acgquire any securities of lower or agual rank.

Thesze perpetual capital securities were issued for the Company’s general corporate purposes as well as to
finance capital expenditure and the expansion of its business.

During the financial year, the Board of Directors have approved to distribute the payments for the Institutional
and Retail Securities. The Institutional Securities distribution amounting to 45,746,000 and 46,505,000 ware
paid on 13 March 2017 and 12 September 2017 respectively. The Retail Securities distribution amounting to
§12.777,000 and 312,847,000 were paid on 18 April 2017 and 19 October 2017 respectively.

The Company fully redeemed the Institutional and Retail Securities on 12 September 2017 and 19 October
2017 raspectivaly.
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OTHER RESERVES

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 £'000 £'000 5'000
Parformancs share resarnve (a) 11,043 28,683 11,043 28,663
Fair value resenve (b) 14,257 17,349 - -
Exchange translation réserve (¢) 7,256 17,011 22 -
32,556 63,023 11,065 28,663

{a) Performance share reserve

Farformance share reserve comprise cumulative fair value of services received from employees measured
at the date of grant for unvested equity-settied performance shares under the Genting Singapore
Performance Share Schemae ("PSE7).

On & August 2007, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of the PSS for the Initial
Period of 10 years. The objactive of the PSS is to attract and retain the Group's executives, executive
directors and non-executive directors, who are in the position to drive the growth of the Company.
Tha PSS gives the Company flexibility in refation to the Group's remuneration package for the Group's
executives, executive directors and non-executive directors and allows the Group to manage its fixed
overheads, On 21 April 20186, the shareholders of the Company approved amendments (o the rules of
the PSS and the Extendad Period.

Linder the PSS, the Company may grant to participants awards which represent the right of such
participants o reseive fully paid shares fres of chargs, upon such participants satisfying the criteria set
out in the PSS and such conditions as may be imposed. The number of shares which are the subject
of sach award shall be datermined at the absoluts discretion of the Remuneration Committes, which
shall take into account various criteria including those set cut in the rules of the PSS, The Company will
deliver shares to be recsived under an award by issuing new shares and/or transferring treasury shares
to the participant.

The total number of shares which may be awarded pursuant to awards granted under the PSS during
the Initial Period shall not exceed 208,853,823 shares, and when added to the number of shares issued
and’or issuable under such other share-based incentive schemeas of the Company, shall ot excesd 5%
of the tolal number of issued shares of the Company (exciuding treasury shares) from time to time. The
total number of shares which may be awarded pursuant to awards granted under the FSS during the
Extended Pericd shail not exceed 420,433,143 shares, and when added to the number of shares issued
andfor issuable under such other share-based incentive schemas of the Company, shall not exceed
5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company (excluding treasury shares) from time to time.

Thea vesting of performance shares granted under PSS is subject to the achieving of pre-agread service
and/or performance conditions over the performance period.

For performance share grants with pre-agreed service conditions, the fair value was determined basad
on the Company’s clasing market price at the date of grant. The weighted average fair value per share
granted in 2017 was 51,004 (2016: 30.714).
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24. OTHER RESERVES [CONTINUED)
(a) Performance share reserve (Continued)

Movements in the number of performance shares cutstanding are as follows:

2017 2016
Beginning of financial year 31,730,000 43,380,000
Granted 5,177.000 6,020,000
Lapsed (1,118,000) (5, 150,000)
Issued (24,859,000] (12,520,000
End of financial year 10,930,000 31,730,000

A summary of the cumulative performance shares granted to the Directors of the Group since the
commencement of the PSS are sat out balow:

Name of Directors Mumber of PSS granted
2017 2016
Tam Sri Lim Kok Thay 7,500,000 7,500,000
Mr Tan Hee Teck 34,630,000 33,880,000
Mr Lim Kok Hoong 1,125,000 1,000,000
Mr Tjong Yik Min 1,125,000 1,000,000
Mr Koh Seow Chuan 1,005,000 880,000

45,385,000 44,260,000

Other than Mr Tan Hee Teck and Ms Tan Hsigh Lee who have been granted 750,000 and 344,000 P35
shares respectively during the financial year, no other employee has received 5% or more of tha total
number of awards granted during the financial year.

{b)  Fair value reserve

Fair value reserve includes the cumulative change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments until
the investments are derecognised or impaired.

{c) Exchange translation reserve
Exchange translation reserve comprise foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the

financlal staternents of forelgn operations where functional currencles are differant from the presentation
currency of the Group,
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DIVIDENDS

Final dividends paid in respect of the prévious financial year of

1.5 cents (2016: 1.5 cents) per ordinary share

Interim dividends paid in regpact of current financial year of

1.6 cents (201 6: 1.5 centg) per ordinany shara

Group and Company

2017 2016
£'000 5'000
180,372 180,185
180,379 180,185

Cn 2 August 2017, the Directors approvad the interim dividend of 1.5 cents per ordinary share in respect of
the financial year endad 31 December 2017, The dividend has been accounted for in sharsholders’ equity as
an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ended 31 December 2017,

The Directors proposed the payment of a final dividend of 2.0 cents per ordinary share, in respect of the financial
year ended 31 December 2017, subject o the approval of sharehclders at the next AGM of the Company.
These financial statements do not reflect this dividend, which will be accounted for in sharehclders’ equity as
an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2018, after it has been approved

by shareholders at the AGM.

PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT GRATUITIES

Beginning of financial year

Exchange differences

Chargedfcredited) to profit or loss

Payment made

End of financial year

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

£'000 3'000 $'000 $'000
T35 200 258 218
3 {1 - -
20 [38) (39) 40
(276) {126) {174) -
476 735 45 258

Retirement gratuities are pavable to certain employeas upon their retirement. The gratuities provided are factored
for discount rates, based on intarest rates availabla in the market for bonds with AAA ratings, and attrition rates

basad on age bands,

COMMITMENTS

{a) Capital commitments

Authorised capital expenditurs not provided for in the

financial statements:
Contracted — property, plant and equipment

Group
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
45,388 38,073
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27. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Operating lease commitments - Where the Group and Company is a lessee

The Company leasses offices and the Group lsasss offices and equipment under non-cancellable operating
lease agresments. These leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights,

The future minimum lease payables under non-cancellable eperating leases are as follows:

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 5000 £'000 5'000
Mot later than one yaar 1,016 1,005 55 330
Between one and five years 461 612 - 55
1,477 1,617 55 385

(e} Operating lease commitments - Where the Group is a lessor
The Group leases out retail space undar non-cancellable operating leases, These leases have varying
terms and renewal rights. Generally, the lessees are required to pay contingent rents computed based

on their turnover achieved during the lease period.

The futwre minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Group
2017 2016
$"000 5000
Mot later than one yaar 13,826 19,613
Betwesen ona and five years 10,278 18,744
Maore than five years 646 1,182
24,750 38,508

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's overall financial risk management objective is to optimise value creation for shareholders. The Group
seaks to minimise the potential adverss impact arising from fluctuations in foreign exchange and interast rates
and the unpradictability of the financial markets on the Group's financial performanca,

The Group operates within clearly defined guidelines that are approved by the Board of Directors. Financial
risk management is carried out through rizk reviews conducted at all significant operational units. This process
is further enhanced by effective internal controls, a group-wide insurance programme and adherence to the
financial risk management policies.
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28. FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
The main areas of financial risk faced by the Group are as follows:
{a) Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group has cerfain investments in foreign operations, whose net assels are exposed to foreign
currency transiation risk. Currency exposura arising from the net assets of the Group's foreign operations
iz managed primarily through borrowings denominatad in the relevant foreign currencies.

The Group iz exposed to foreign currency exchange risk when the Company and its subsidiaries anter
into transactions that are not denominated in their functicnal currencies. To manage these exposures,
the Group takes advantage of any natural offsets of the Group's revenue and expenses denominated in
foreign currencies and may from time to time enter inte foreign exchange forward contracts for a portion
of the remaining exposure relating to these forecast transactions when deemed appropriate,

The Group's and Company's principal net fareign currency exposures mainly relate to the United States
Daallar (“LISD").

The Group and Company's currency exposures are as follows:

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
usp £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets 103,852 43,128 - -
Trade and olher recaivables 4,773 7730 15,596 55,623
Cash and cash equivalents B79,577 959,835 B70,777 916,472
988,202 1,010,703 886,373 972,035
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables [2,154) (3,048) (522) {181}
Finance leases (2,611} (3,383) - -
(4,7T65) (6,429) (522) {181)
Met currency exposures 983,437 1,004,274 885,851 971,814
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(a) Foreign currency exchange risk (Continued)

it the USD changes against the Singapore Dallar ("SG0D%) by 1% (2016: 1%) with all other variables bsing
held constant, the effects on profit before tax will be as follows:

Increase/{decreasa)
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 $'000 $'000 £'000
USD against SGD
- Strengthenad 9,834 10,043 8,859 2,719
- Weakenad {9,834) (10,043) (8,859) {9,719)

(b) Price risk

The Group is exposed (o securities price risk from its quoted securities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets. To manage its price risk arising from thase investments, the Group diversifies its portfolio,
Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits sat by the Group,

If prices for quoted securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets change by 1% (2016: 1%)
respectively with all other variables being held constant, the effects on other comprehensive income will

be as follows:
Increase/|{decreass)
Group
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
increasad by 1% 1,806 1,202
Decreased by 1% (1,806) {1,202}

The Company |5 not exposed to price risk.
{c) Interest rate risk

interast rate risk arises mainly from the Group's short-term deposits and borrowings. The Group's
short-term deposits are placed at prevailing intarest rates and are substantially independent of interest
rates risk, The Group®s bank borrowings bears floating inferest rate.

The Group enters into interest rates swaps from time to time, where appropriate, to generate the desired
intarest rate profile.

If the annual intersst ratés levied on bank borrowings had increased/decraased by 100 basis point
[2016: 100 basis point) with all other variables including tax rate being held constant, the profit befors
tanation will be lowar higher by $10,780.000 (2016: $14,132,000) as a result of higher/lowar interast
expansa on these bank borrowings.

96 | GENTING SINGAPORE ANNUAL REFORT 2017

217/251



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

28.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{d)  Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of counterparties of the Group, to sattie
their financial and confractual obligation, as and when they fall dus.

Tha Group's main class of financial azsats that are subject to the credit risk are cash and cash equivalants,
available-for-sale financial assets, trade and other recaivables and restricted cash. The Group's cash and
cash equivalents and restricted cash are placed with creditworthy financial instituticns.

In managing credit risk exposure from trade receivables, the Group has established a Cradit Committes
and processes o evaluate the creditwarthiness of its countarparties, The counterparty’s payment profile
and credit exposure are continuoushy monitored by the Credit Committee, together with the operational
policies and guidelines, Credit exposure to an individual counterparty is restricted by the credit limits sat
by the Cradit Committes based on the ongoing credit evaluation.

As the Group and Company do not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk for each
class of financial instruments is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented on
the statements of financial position,

The top 10 trads debtors of the Group represented 24% (2016; 34%) of trade receivablas. The Group
also establishes an allowance account for impairmeant that repreésants its estimate of losses in respect
of trade and other receivables. The main component of this alowance is estimated lossas that relate
to specific counterparties. Subsequently when the Group is satisfied that no recovery of such lossas s
possible, the trade receivables are considered irrecoverable and the amount charged to the allowance
account is then written off against the carrying amount of the impaired trade receivables.

i} Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and available-for-sale financial assets are neither past
due nor impaired as they are placed with creditworthy financial institutions and crganisations. Trade
and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are substantialiy from companias
and individuals with a good collaction track record with the Group and individuals with good
creditworthiness.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
() Cradit risk (Continued)
i} Financial assats that are past due andor impaired

The Group has no other class of financial assets that is past due and/or impaired except for trade
and other recaivables.

The age analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired is as follows:

Group

2017 2016

£'000 5'000
Fast due less than 3 manths 12,233 30,365
Fast due 3 to 6 months 283 16,066
Past due & to 12 months 212 12,369
Past due over 12 maonths 204 74
13,022 58,674

The Company hag no exposure to trade recavablas past due but no impaired.

The movements in allowance for impairment are as follows:

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
$'000 5000 5000 5'000
Beginning of financial year 184,033 220,755 136,846 254,939
Allowance charged/credited) to
profit or loss 103,593 275,509 2,561 (118,296)
Allowance utilised {131,348 {312,244) (487) -
Exchange differences (25) 13 (9,424) 03
End of financial year 156,253 184,033 129,496 136,546

The Group's gross frade and other receivables individually determined to be past due and for which
impairment has been provided, amounted to $156,253,000 (2016 $184,033,000}. In assassing
these individual debis for impairment, the Group has considered the factors as elaborated in
Mote 3(b).

The Company's gross amounts due from subsidiaries determined fo be impaired is 3122426 000
(2016: 2136,848,000).
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28. FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{e) Liguidity risk

The Group practises prudent liquidity risk management to minimise the mismatch of financial assets
and ligbilities. The Group's cash flow is reviewed regularly to ensure that the Group is able to seitls its
commitments when they fall due.

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities of the Group and aggregated for Group
purposes. The Group monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cazh
to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on itz undrawn committed borrowing
facilities at all times so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on any of its
borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takas into consideration the Group's debt financing plans, covenant
compliance and compliance with internal ratio targets.

The table below analyses the financial liabilities of the Group and the Company into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period as at reporting date to the contractual malturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than Between Betwean
1 year 1and 2 years 2 and 5 years
5'000 £'000 £'000
Group
2017
Trade and other payables” 396,585 - a5
Bank borrowings 231,960 230,253 579,576
Bonds 1,586 1,586 241,568
Finance leases 2,033 1,031 85
632,164 232,870 821,264
2016
Trade and other payables® 298,164 - -
Bank borrowings 216,200 236,111 813,380
Finance leases 3,538 320 10
517,902 236,431 813,390
Company
2017
Trade and other payables” 402,666 - -
Bonds 1,586 1,586 241,568
404,252 1,586 241,568
2016
Trade and other payables” 238,576 - -

Excludes deferred income
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
f) Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholdsrs and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Group defines “capital® as all
componants of equity,

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital o shareholders, issus new shares or sall assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with the industry, the Group monitors capital based on a gearing ratio. This ratio is caloulated
as total debt divided by total capital, Total debt is calculated as total borrowings. Total capital is calculated
as equity attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and perpetual capital securities holders
plus total debt.

The Group's stratagy in 2017, which was unchangead from 2018, was to maintain the gearing ratio below
BE%. The gearing ratios are as follows:

Group
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Total debt 1,216,000 1,164,015
Total equity attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company and
perpetual capital securities holders 7,441,558 9,530,261
Total capital 8,657,558 10,604 276
Gaaring ratio 14% 1%

The Group was in compliance with externally imposed capital reguiremeants at the reporting dates.
{g) Fair value estimation

The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified by
level of the following fair value measuremeant higrarchy;

i Cuoted pricas (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Leve! 1);

{ii} Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabity,
gither directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) {Level 2); and

fiily  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on obsarvable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) [Leval 3).
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28. FINANGIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{g) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'000 S'000 £'000 £'000

Group
2017
Assets
Available-for-zale financial assets
{Mote 14) 180,643 - 36,656 217,209

2016
Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 14) 120,236 - 43,129 163,365

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,

The fair value of financial instrumeants tradad in active markets is based on closing quoted market prices
on the last market day at the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing sarvice, or ragulatory
agency, and those prices represant actual and regulary occurring markst transactions on an arm's lsngth
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets hald by the Group is the currant bid price. Thase
instruments are includad in Lavel 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example, ovar-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation technigues. Thesa valuation technigues maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as litlle as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs reguired to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2.

Tha Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are basad on market conditions
exizsting at each reporting date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are usad
to estimate fair value for long tarm debt for discloswe purposes. The fair value of interest rate swaps is
calculated as the presant value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yvield curvas, Othar
tachniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining
financial instrumeants,
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28.

(9)

{h)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on chservable market data, the instrument is included
in Level 3, Changing one or more of the unobservable inputs in the valuation technique used for Level 3
instruments will not significantly impact the fair value of these instruments, The assessment of the fair
value of unguoted debt securities is performed on a quarterly basis based on the latest available data
such as undarlying net asset value of the investes entity to approximate the fair value as at reporting date.

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments:

Group
2017 2016
3000 £'000
Beginning of financial year 43,129 71,514
Disposals (585) (6,379
Fair value loss recognised in other comprehansive income (5,888) (22.,006)
End of financial year 36,656 43,129

The fair value of current and non-current financial agsats and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.
Financial instruments by category

The aggragate carying amounts of financial instrumeants are categorised as follows:

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 £'000 2000 £'000
Loans and receivables 4,069,666 5,256,806 3,745,429 £,119,703
Available-for-sale financial assats 217,299 163,365 = -
Financial liabilities at amortisad cost 1,612,620 1,462,179 402,666 238,576
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Company's immediate holding corporation is Genting Cwverseas Holdings Uimited ("GOHL"), a company
incorporated in the Isle of Man. The ultimate holding corporation is Genting Berhad ("GBT), a company
incorporated in Malaysia and whose shares are listed on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the following
significant transactions took place batween the Group and related parties:

Group
2017 2016
$'000 5'000
fi Sales of goods and/or services to:
= Subsidiaries of a substantial shareholder 2176 1,962
= A joint venture 1,171 1,061
3,347 3,023
(iip Purchases of goods andfor services from;:
- Subsidiaries of a substantial shareholder (3,150) {2,802)
- A joint venture (18,424) 21,267)
{21,574) {24,089)
(i} Interest income receivable from an associate a7 11,757
GCompany
2017 2016
5000 £'000
] Purchasas of goods andfor sarvices from subsidiaries (T41) {1,068)
(i} Management fess paid/pavable to a subsidiary (3,485) -
(i} Management fees received/receivable from a subsidiary 9,528 7,125
v} Interest income received/raceivable from subsidiaries 38,344 36,198
v} Dividend income received/raceivable from subsidiaries 719,244 457 187
(i Dividends paid to immediate holding corporation (190,611) (190,611)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 CECEMBER 2017

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Key management remuneration (including directors’ remuneration):
Key management remunsration includes fees, salaries, bonus, commission and other emoluments computed
basad on the costs incurred by the Group and Company, and where the Group and Company did not ingur

any costs, the value of the banefit,

The remuneration of directors and the key managament personnel are analysed as follows:

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 5000 £'000 £'000
Non-executive directors
= Fees and meeling allowances 1,222 817 1,222 B17
= Share-based payment 375 216 375 216
1,587 1,033 1,507 1,033
Executive directors
- Fees and mesting allowances 84 75 ;% 75
- Salaries, bonus and other emalumeants 14,692 9,549 9,603 5,620
= Dafined contribution plan 203 30 191 18
- Share-based payment 6,690 6,303 6,690 6,303
21,669 15,9587 16,568 12,018
Total 23,266 16,990 18,165 13,049
Key management personnel
{excluding directors' remuneration)
- Salaries, bonus and other emoluments 6,839 6,687 1,908 2,717
- Defined contribution plan 178 160 59 76
- Share-basad payment 1,259 1,418 284 T2
Total 8,276 8,285 2,251 3,088
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the cperating segments based on the reports that are used by the chief operating
decision-maker to make strategic decisions.

The chief operating decision-maker considers the business from both business and geographic perspectives.
Business segment

The Singapore leisure and hospitality segment dadrives revenue from the development and opearation of the
integrated resort.

Under the Development Agreement signed between the SDC and the Group, the Group is required to construct,
develop and operate a resort with a comprehensive range of integrated and synergised amenities for recraation,
entertainment and lifestyle uses. This includes key attractions such as hotels, event facilities, retail, dining,
entertainment shows, themed attractions and casino, which must be at all times operated and managed logether,
Each key attraction cannct be closed without pricr written approval from SDC.

The investmeant business derives revenue fram investing in assets to gensrate future income and cash flows,

Sales between segments are carried out at arm’s length. The revenue from external parties raported 1o the
chiel operating decision-maker is measurad in a manner consistant with that in the statement of comprahansive
income,

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance of the operating segments basad on a measure
of adjusted sarnings before interest, tax, depraciation and amortisation ("Adjusted EBITDAT). This measurement
basis excludes the effects of gainfoss on disposal of assets and liabilities classified as held-for-sale,
gaindoss on disposal of available-for-sale financial asssts, share-based paymeant, net exchangs gaindoss relating
to investments and other expenses which include impairmant/write-off/gainioss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment, pre-opening/developmeant expenses and other non-recurring adjustments.

Segment assaets consist primarily of property, plant and equipmeant, intangible assets, inventories, trade and
other receivablas, available-for-sale financial assets, restricted cash and caszh and cash equivalents.

Segment liabilities comprize all liabilities other than current and defarred tax liabilities, borrowings and finance
leasas.
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30.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Group
2017

Gaming revanus
Mon-gaming revenus
Cilhars

Inter-segment revenue

External revenue

Adjusted EBITDA

Share of results of joint venture
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Assets

Segment assats
Interasts in joint venture
Defarred tax assats

Consolidated total assels

Segment assels include:
Additions fo:
- Property, plant and equipment
- Intangible assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities
Borrowings

Incomes tax liabilities
Defarrad tax liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Leisure and Hospitality

Singapore Others® Investments Tetal
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

1,746,217 - - 1,746,217
644,228 - - 644,228

- 469 6,167 6,636
- - (4,522) (4,522}
2,390,445 469 1,645 2,392,559
1,172,064 {5,983} (14,907) 1,151,174
3,385 - - 3,385
{258,038) - {1,153) (259,191}
(23,721) - - (23,721}
6,480,651 18,614 3,053,216 9,552,481
54,203 - - 54,293

52

9,606,826

120,464 - 201 120,665
2,214 - - 2,214
454,017 1,981 0,605 465,603
1,218,000

200,303

283,360

2,165,266

Other lgisure and haspitality segment mainly represent other support services,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Group
2016

Gaming revenusa
Mon-gaming revenue
Others

Inter-sagment revenus

External revenue

Adjusted EBITDA

Share of results of joint ventures and associate
Depraciation of property, plant and equipment
Amaortisation of intangible assats

Assets

Segment assels
Interests in joint venture
Deferred tax assets

Consolidated total assets

Segmant azsats includa:
Additions to:
- Property, plant and equipment
- Intangible assets

Liabilities

Segment labilities
Borrowings

Income tax labilites
Deferred tax labiities

Consolidated total liabilities

Leisure and Hospitality

Singapore Others” Investments Total

000 3'000 5000 5000
1,588,486 - - 1,588,486
637,450 - - 637,450
- 441 6.830 7.2
= — (5,157} [5,157)
2,225,936 441 1673 2,228,050
799,539 [3,238) (17,303} 778,996
4,047 110,281) - (6,234)
(272,391} - {1,101} (273,482
(23,207) - - [23,207)
6,356,985 838,843 4,199,543 11,395,374
50,808 - - 50,808
26
11,446,308
43,440 - 141 49,581
68,508 - - £8,508
344,327 6,400 7424 368,151
1,164,015
93,777
300,102

1,916,045

Othar laisure and Rospdalily sagment mainky represant infarast in an associate and othar Support samicas.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 CECEMBER 2017

30. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to profit before taxation is provided as follows:

Group
2017 2016
£'000 5'000
Adjusted EBITDA for reporiable segments 1,151,174 778,996
{Loss)igain on disposal of available-for-sale inancial assels,
net of transaction costs (4,331) 3,241
Impairment on available-for-sale financial assets - (13,849)
Share-based paymeant (10,765) (10,741)
Met exchange (lossi/gain relating to investments (109,337) 19,980
Depreciation and amortisation (282,912) (29€,699)
Interest income 71,094 83,868
Finance costs (35,648) (44,553
Share of results of ppint ventures and associate 3,385 (6.234)
Gain on disposal of assets and liakilities classified as held for sale 96,285 986
Other expenses” (18,919) (18.596)
Profit before taxation 860,026 496,619

Other expenses Include Impairment/write-off/galndloss) on disposal of property, plant and eguipment, pre-opensng/
davelopmeant axpansas and other non-recurring adjustments.

Geographical information

The Group operates predominantly in Asia, The main business of the Group is in leisure and hospitality operations
in Singapare where the development and opearation of an integrated resort contributes most of its revenue, Thea
operations in other geographical areas in the Asia Pacific (excluding Singapore) are sales and marketing sarvices
ratating to the Group's leisure and hospitality related businasses and other investments.

Revanue is classified basead on the location in which revenue is derived. Sales betweean segmants are eliminated.
MNon-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and available-for-sale financial assats.

Group
2017 2016
5000 5000
Revenue
Singapore 2,392,182 2,227,500
Asia Pacific lexcluding Singapors) 377 541

2,392,559 2,228,050

Mon-current assets
Singapore 5,243,700 5,433,394
Asia Pacific (excluding Singapore) 7,302 8,477

5,251,002 £ 441,871

There are no revenue or assets generated from or located in the Isle of Man. There are no revenue derived from
transactions with a single external customer that amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

31. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were authorizsed for issue in accordance with a resclution of the Board of Directors
on 23 February 2015,
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2018 3 31

1,000

675,112
281,792
217,186
217,074

1.80

7,657,478
9,746,165
78.6
303,584
(18,469)
(112,560)
3,987,765

International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS IFRS

IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
@
@

IFRS 10

International Accounting Standards IAS 28
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(IFRS International Finacial Reporting Interpretations Committee IFRIC
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@
IAS 16

)
IFRS IAS 38
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IAS 36 IAS 36

20

(6)
IAS 39

233/251



Q)

IAS 39

b)

IFRS

10

234/251

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

ooooood
IAS 39

10

(®)
IAS 20

@
(b)

©
IAS 19

26

(10)
IAS 19

(11)

IFRS
@ ) ©)

@

(b)

©

235/251



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

IFRS

(12)

IAS 23

JICPA

(13)
IFRIC

IFRS

14)
@
IFRS 1AS12

IFRS

IFRS

236/251



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

IFRS

(®)
IAS 12

JICPA

(15)
IFRS IAS 32

19

(16)
IFRS

IFRS

Qan
IFRS

21

237/251



IFRS

@
IFRS

®)
IFRS

IFRS

©
IAS 36

20

238/251

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

239/251



2017
2017
2017
2017

12
12
12
12

31
31
31
31

2017 12 31

I1SA

240/251

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

ACRA
ACRA
ACRA

241/251



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GENTING SINGAPORE PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Genting Singapore PLC (the "Company") and its
subsidiaries (the "Group") and the financial statements of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the International Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company and the Group for the financial year ended on that date.

What we have audited

The financial statements of the Company and the Group comprise:
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017;
the statement of comprehensive income of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017;
the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017;
the statement of financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2017;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows of the Company for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) Code of
Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (ACRA Code) together with the ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
accompanying financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgments; for
example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events
that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of

material misstatement due to fraud.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters  Group

Key Audit Matter
1. Estimates involved in tax provisions

See Note 3(a) of the financial statements for
related accounting policies, estimates and

judgements for further information.

This was a key audit matter because of the
significant judgement involved in evaluating
the capital allowances claim for items within
the leasehold improvements and fixtures and
fittings asset categories which are not common
and have few precedents, and the deductibility
of certain expenses such as borrowing costs.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has
income tax provisions of $200 million and
deferred tax liabilities of $283 million.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We updated our understanding of management's processes and
controls for identifying and calculating tax-related provisions.

We considered relevant historical assessments issued by tax
authorities and obtained an understanding of the latest position in all
open tax matters relating to material items including the conclusions
reached during the year and checked that management has revised
its estimates of tax provisions accordingly. We involved our tax
specialists in assessing management's tax positions. We also read
all relevant correspondences with the tax authorities, in particular
those relating to the availability of capital allowances claim for
certain assets, and the deductibility of certain expenses, and
checked that management has made adequate provisions.

Based on procedures performed, management's assessment on the
availability of capital allowances claim for certain assets and
deductibility of certain expenses in the Group's tax provision is
consistent with our understanding.
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Key Audit Matter
2. Impairment of trade receivables

See Note 3(b) of the financial statements for
the related accounting policies, estimates and
judgements and Note 28(d) for the credit risk
exposure.

The impairment of trade receivables, majority
of which were related to casino debtors, was a
key audit matter as significant judgement was
involved in evaluating the credit risk of casino
with  outstanding  debts
determining whether the trade receivables
should be impaired. As at 31 December 2017,
allowance for impairment amounts to $156

debtors and

million and an impairment charge of $48 million
was recognised for ended 31

December 2017.

the vyear

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We updated our understanding of the process for credit assessment
and approval, and impairment assessment of trade receivables. We
manual and

tested the operating effectiveness of relevant

automated controls including the following:

checked on a sampling basis that credit assessment has been
appropriately completed in accordance with the Group's standard
operating procedures for casino debtors with credit granted;

checked on a sampling basis the authorisation of credit based on
the Group's approval matrix for credit transactions; and

read the minutes of all the meetings of the Credit Committee
(which is responsible for the monitoring of trade receivables and
approval of impairment provisions) and checked that monitoring
and credit risk assessment is performed.

We held discussions with the chairperson of the Credit Committee
about selected past due trade receivables to understand the
judgement exercised in assessing the collectability of these trade
receivables, particularly on trade receivables that were past due but
not impaired.

We read the credit evaluation and monitoring files of selected casino

debtors. We assessed the appropriateness of provision for
impairment based on historical trend of collections and external data

on those selected casino debtors.

Based on the above, we are satisfied that the assumptions used in
management's assessment are appropriate.

Key audit matters  Company

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report which arise from the audit of the

financial statements of the Company.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the financial highlights, corporate
diary, corporate governance and report of the directors (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, and the other sections of the Company's
Annual Report ("the Other Sections") which are expected to be made available to us after that date.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Other Sections, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with ISAs.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
provisions of the Isle of Man Law and International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
Sso.

The directors' responsibilities include overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit.

We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Tan Boon Chok.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 23 February 2018
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